
Meeting of:  Integrated Commissioning Board
Date: Tuesday, 26th March, 2019
Time: 3.30 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  MINUTES 4 - 5

For the Board to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on the 26th 
February 2019. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  CHANGES TO HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

For Members to receive a presentation on changes to the Governance 
arrangements for the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

6.  OPENING POOLED BUDGET 6 - 8

Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) will receive an update on the 
current budget gaps for the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled 
Fund for 2019/20 & 2020/21. 

Public Document Pack



7.  BETTER CARE FUND - UPDATE REPORT 9 - 13

The Board will receive an update on the Better Care Fund. 

8.  POOLED BUDGET POSITION - PERIOD 10 14 - 19

Members will receive a report on the pooled budget fund – period 10. 

9.  TRANSFORMATION HIGHLIGHT REPORT 20 - 33

The Board will receive the Transformation Highlight Report. 

10.  FINANCE UPDATE ON THE GM FUNDED TRANSFORMATION 
FUND PROGRAMME 

34 - 37

For the Board to receive an update on the GM funded Transformation 
Fund Programme. 

11.  PERFORMANCE REPORT 38 - 46

The Board are asked to consider the Integrated Commission Board 
Performance Report. 

12.  OPERATING PLANS 

The Board will receive a verbal update on the Operating Plans. 

13.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

14.  SAVINGS PROPOSALS UPDATE 2019/20 AND 2020/21 47 - 68

The Board will be provided with an update on Savings proposals 
2019/20 and 2020/21. 

15.  LCO CONTRACTING ARRANGEMENTS 69 - 71



Members will consider the future contracting model for the LCO. 

16.  FUTURE PROVISION OF CHILDREN’S COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICES 

72 - 76

To consider a procurement process for the future provision of 
Children’s Community Health Services 

Integrated Commissioning Board Members:
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Dr Bodrul Alam
Councillor Allen Brett
Graham Burgess (Independent Chair)
Denise Dawson
Dr Chris Duffy
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Joanne Newton
Councillor Sara Rowbotham

For further information about this meeting, please contact:
John Addison 
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924829
e-mail: john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk


INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 26 February 2019

PRESENT: G. Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG: Dr B. Alam, D. 
Dawson, P.Riley (Sub for J. Newon); RBC: Councillor A. Brett, S. Rowbotham 
and Councillor K. Heakin. 

APOLOGIES: S. McIvor (RBC/HMR CCG), J. Newton and Dr Duffy G. 
Hopper - Director of Children’s Services.

OFFICERS: HMR CCG: 

 Sam Evans - Chief Finance Officer Health & Social Care Integration 
 S. Croasdale - Strategic Commissioning Director 

HMR CCG/RBC: 

 Steve Rumbelow - Chief Executive 

RBC: 

 A. Fallon - Director for Public Health and Wellbeing 
 D. Wilcock - Assistant Director for Legal, Governance and Workforce
 N. Thornton - Director of Resources
 V. Bradshaw - Chief Finance Officer
 J. Addison - Senior Governance and Committee Officer

113 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declaration of interests. 

114 MINUTES

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 29th of January 2019 be approved 
as a correct record.

115 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following four items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (3) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 

Reason for Decision: 

Should the press and public remain during the debate on this item there may 
be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



116 PROPOSED PROVIDER FEE RATES 2019/2020 FINANCIAL YEAR

The Director for Public Health and Wellbeing presented the Board with a 
report that proposed new fee rates for externally commissioned care funded 
services and recommendations for fee increases for homecare, residential 
care and supported living services. 

RESOLVED

1) That the Integrated Commissioning Board approve the proposed fee 
rate increases for a range of Adult Social Care services delivered by 
externally commissioned providers in Rochdale Borough. 

2) That the Board agree to retain the personal expenditure allowance 
(PEA) for residential and nursing care at the current rate of £24.90, the 
minimum defined by the Department of Health (DoH).

3) That the Board note the fee increases are not currently fully funded in 
the 2019/20 pooled budget and the shortfall of approximately £0.45m 
(FYE in 2020/21 £0.6m) would be added to the pool fund gap and dealt 
with as part of the setting of the pooled budget for 2019/20 which would 
be reported to Integrated Commissioning Board in March/April 2019. 

4) That the Board note its decision are made within the context of the 
Council’s statutory responsibilities in relation to the Adult Social Care 
market as set out in the Care Act 2014. Further noting that the Care Act 
requires the Council to ensure that there is a sustainable market to 
meet the adult social care needs of its residents. The duties include a 
requirement that Councils pay fees at a level that enables providers to 
retain an effective workforce and, at least, to comply with the National 
Living Wage). 

5) That the Board note the NLW is in its fourth year of implementation and 
in 2019/20 the rate for employees over 25 had increased from £7.83 to 
£8.21 (4.85%) subject to once the work being undertaken across the 
North West on NWL has been completed, an update with costings be 
brought back to a future meeting.

6) That the Board approve the increase in fee rates as detailed in 
paragraph 5.3 of the report, noting that the budget setting report for 
2019/20 would deal with the budget issues identified.

Page 5



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting : 26th March 2019
Portfolio : Integrated Commissioning Lead Member : Cllr Rowbotham
Report Author : Rob Kilvington Lead Officer : Sam Evans
Public/Private Document : Public

Update on the financial position of the Integrated Health & Social 
Care Pooled Fund in 2019/20 and 2020/21

Executive Summary

1.1 This report updates the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the current 
budget gaps for the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund for 2019/20 
& 2020/21.

Recommendation

2.
1

It is recommended that ICB  :-
a) Note the current budget gap for the Integrated Health & Social Care 

Pooled Fund is £16.6m and £17.2m for 2019/20 & 2020/21 
respectively. It should be noted that the final pooled fund gap will not 
be known until the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has 
completed all of its contract negotiations. The final date for contract 
signing is 21st March, a verbal update will be given at the meeting on 
the outcome of contract negotiations and any impact it might have on 
the gaps noted.

b) Note that an additional report will be brought to the meeting updating 
on the savings programme that is being developed to close the budget 
gaps noted above.

 
Reason for Recommendation

3.
1

The Pooled Fund operates under Section 75 of the National Health Service 
2006 Act and is mandated to set a balanced budget at the start of each 
financial year. 

The last report taken to ICB on 29th January 19 confirmed budget gaps for the 
Pooled Fund of :-

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



3.
2

3.
3

 £11.9m in 2019/20 and 
 £14.0m in 2020/21

This report confirms further changes to these which alters the budget gaps to 
:-

 £16.6m in 2019/20 and 
 £21.8m in 2020/21

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

It should be noted whilst this is a best estimate of the budget gap at this time 
until the CCG concludes its contract negotiations the final gap will not be 
known.  

The changes that have been incorporated in this report reflect :-
 A reduction in the impact of planning assumptions in the LA’s budget 

process; +£1.7m in 19/20 and -£0.2m in 20/21. These include :- 
o net benefits of -£0.7m and -£0.8m in 19/20 and 20/21 

respectively arising from changes in Section 31 grants and 
Business Rate calculations, offset by 

o increased pressures in Adult Social Care Provider Fees of 
£0.5m and £0.6m in 19/20 and 20/21 respectively

o additional Children’s Services pressures of £1.9m over and 
above the £2.8m identified in the report to ICB in January. 

 Increased pressures within the CCG as a result of the confirmed 
allocations from NHS England and the re-alignment of TF 
Programme benefits arising from the reforecast; +£2.7m in 19/20 and 
+£7.6m in 20/21

 A reduction in the benefits arising from Transformation within the LA; 
+£0.3 in 19/20 and +£0.4m in 20/21 

The table below shows how the budget gaps in 2019/20 and 2020/21 have 
changed since the start of 2018/19 :-

Page 7



4.4

4.5

CCG LA

Total 
Pooled 

Fund CCG LA

Total 
Pooled 

Fund

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Budget gap at the s tart of 18/19 16,000 13,960 29,960 24,000 20,378 44,378
Changes  in budget assumptions  / 
addi tional  resources -2,182 -2,182 -9,941 -9,941

Ongoing savings  achieved in 2018/19 -4,110 -1,246 -5,356 -4,110 -1,246 -5,356
Ongoing savings  achieved in 2018/19 
via  Transformation -4,793 -4,793 -5,237 -5,237

Cashable Benefi ts  from Transformation 0 -404 -404

One-off Resources -85 -85 0
Changes  in budget assumptions  / 
addi tional  resources  - RBC -956 -956 -1,682 -1,682
Budget gap for Pooled Fund reported to 
26th March ICB 9,708 6,880 16,588 9,545 12,213 21,758

Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Gap for 2019/20 & 2020/21
2019/20 2020/21

Alternatives Considered

Para 3.1 notes that the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund is 
mandated to set a balanced budget and all areas of the Pooled Fund will 
therefore be reviewed in the search for opportunities to close the budget gap. 

ICB will be advised in a further report to this meeting about progress being 
made on a number of savings proposals that have been identified to close the 
financial gap. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The financial impact has already been reflected in Section 4 above.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 Section 75 of the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local 
authorities and health bodies to establish pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions.

Consultation

7.1 This report has been produced in consultation with colleagues from both the 
LA and CCG. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 

For Further Information Contact: Rob Kilvington, 01706 925444
rob.kilvington@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8



Page 9



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting- 26th March 2019
Portfolio- Integrated 
Commissioning

Lead Member- Councillor Rowbotham 

Report Author- Gareth Davies Lead Officer- Sam Evans
Public Document

Better Care Fund Revised Budget Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

1.1 To inform the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) and the Rochdale Health 
and Well Being Board (RHWBB) of the proposed budget for the Better Care 
Fund (BCF) for the financial year 2019/20. 

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

ICB approves the revised revenue and capital budgets for the BCF for 
2019/20.

ICB note that the capital Disabled Facility Grant (DFG) allocation for 2019/20 
is not yet confirmed by NHSE. In line with the LA Capital Programme it is 
estimated that the level of DFG funding will remain at £2.440m. Members will 
be updated at a future meeting of the final DFG allocation once confirmation 
has been received, in conjunction with the balance of the 2018/19 capital 
budgets carried forward to 2019/20.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Rochdale Health and Well Being Board (RHWBB) have ultimate sign off of the 
BCF budget as mandated in the BCF Policy Framework and Planning 
Guidance. However, the RHWBB have delegated responsibility for the BCF to 
the ICB. The 2019/20 budget is based on the 2018/19 budget, taking into 
account known changes in allocations and nationally mandated NHS uplifts. 

NHSE are still to decide if Greater Manchester BCF partners will receive 
graduation in 2019/20, until that decision is made it is assumed they will 
require quarterly budget and planning templates to be produced to monitor 
against in 2019/20, as yet no dates for these submissions have been received.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget 
and this was approved by the ICB at its September 2017 meeting. ICB noted 
at its meeting on 29th January 19 the incorporation of the Better Care Fund 
within the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Section 75 Agreement. The 
updated Section 75 Agreement was duly signed by both Partners on 7th March 
19 and will be updated as and when appropriate. 

The LA and CCG are still holding a VAT provision of £401.6k in relation to a 
potential VAT liability for the equipment contract. The treatment of this 
provision is currently being reviewed and the outcome will be reported to a 
future ICB meeting.
 
Alternatives Considered
It is a requirement of the NHSE guidance to produce a budget for 2019/20. 
This report provides details of the proposed 2019/20 budget taking into 
account the known changes in Better Care Fund Allocations. Therefore, there 
are no alternatives to consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Table 1 shows the latest 2018/19 budget reported to ICB in January 2019, 
and the proposed 2019/20 budget. Overall, the Better Care Fund has 
increased by £3.681m. This is due to a net increase in LA Better Care Fund 
Grants (£2.278m), the inclusion of the 2019/20 Winter Pressure Funding 
Grant (£1.108m), and a 1.79% increase in CCG contributions to the Better 
Care Fund (£0.295m).

Page 11



Table 1 – Better Care Fund Budget 2019/20
Line 
No

Scheme  2018/19 Budget 
as at December 

2018 

 Proposed 
2019/20 Budget  

Reason for Change in Budget

£'s £'s
Revenue Expenditure

1 Funding of Social Care Services 2019/20 14,172,407 18,202,387
£3.879m Increase in LA Grant funding and 
1.79% increase in CCG contribution.

2
Additional Funding in Adult Social Care 
notified in Spring Budget 2017 3,169,389 1,568,389 £1.601m reduction in LA grant Funding.

3 Care Act Implementation 197,926 201,469 1.79% increase in CCG Contribution

Carers Services

4 Carers -universal services 400,668 407,840 1.79% increase in CCG Contribution

5 Carers night sitting service - dementia 80,000 80,000 No Change
Carers sub total 480,668 487,840
Reablement Services

6 Reablement - dementia support workers 83,446 85,115
2% increase in CCG Contribution based on LA 
pay award

7
Reablement - Intermediate Care dementia 
flexible workers 61,812 63,048

2% increase in CCG Contribution based on LA 
pay award

8
Reablement - mental health outreach 
workers 100,830 104,712 3.85% increase in CCG Contribution

9
Reablement - memory clinic dementia 
workers 48,017 49,866 3.85% increase in CCG Contribution

10 Reablement - carers l ife after stroke 130,227 135,306 3.9% increase in CCG Contribution

11 Reablement - equipment loan store 936,724 953,491 1.79% increase in CCG Contribution
Reablement sub total 1,361,056 1,391,538
Intermediate tier service 

12
Reablement (STAR's) plus to support the 
new service 176,903 183,448 3.7% increase in CCG Contribution

13 Pennine Acute ITS contract 5,571,626 5,716,558 3.9% increase

14
Pennine Acute CQUIN - new funding from 
CCG 139,291 72,361 1.25% of Pennine Acute ITS contract

15 Winter Pressure Funding Expenditure - 1,108,000 Expenditure to be funded in l ine with LA Grant.

16 Contingency for revenue schemes 122,459 140,808 Unallocated amount.
Intermediate Care sub total 6,010,279 7,221,175
Total Revenue Expenditure 25,391,725 29,072,798

Income

17 Contribution from CCG 15,895,107-         16,179,629-        1.79% in CCG Contribution

18
Contribution from CCG - uplift in BCF 
allocation 589,454-               600,005-              1.79% in CCG Contribution

19 Contribution from LA 5,737,775-           9,616,775-          £3.879m Increase in LA Grant funding

20
Contribution from LA additional Grant 
notified in 2017 Spring Budget 3,169,389-           1,568,389-          £1.601m reduction in LA grant Funding.

21
Contribution from LA - Winter Pressure 
Funding 2019/20 - 1,108,000-          

New Grant announced in Autum Statement 
2018.

Total Income 25,391,725-         29,072,798-        

(Surplus) income over expenditure - -

5.2 The capital DFG budget has yet to be confirmed but based on the forecast 
allocation of £2.440m a draft spending plan is submitted for approval, see 
table 2. The figures in table 2 include the 2019/20 anticipated DFG allocation, 
but do not take account of any 2018/19 capital budgets to be carried forward 
as the outturn position is not yet known. ICB will be updated once the 2018/19 
carry forward and 19/20 DFG allocations are confirmed.

Page 12



Table 2 Allocation of DFG 

Allocation of Disabled Facilities 
Grant

Budget 2019/20 Scheme Details

£'s
Main DFG Budget 500,000 Disabled Facilities grants, going through national legislation, with the full 

means test applied.
Fast Track DFG 1,000,000 Use of discretionary policy to mirror DFG's, but without means testing for 

cases where cost of work is less than £8,000.
DFG Top Up Grants 50,000 Discretionary top up grant of up to £10,000 where cost of works exceeds 

the £30k maximum upper grant limit.
Stairlift Replacement 100,000 Replace the oldest stairlifts, which are owned by RBC, with new ones, that 

come with a full 5 year warranty, that will remain in the ownership of the 
service user.

Dementia, Falls and Excess Cold 
grants

50,000 To fund a range of innovation grants, to prevent accidents and hospital 
admissions and to support people to live independently within their own 
homes for as long as possible.

Repairs to Adaptations 35,000 To fund repairs to existing adaptations in cases where the original service 
user still remains in the property with the same needs.

Minor Adaptations 100,000 Fund the cost of the larger minor adaptations costing less than £1,000, such 
as external metal handrails.  There has been an increase in minor 
adaptations since the introduction of the Care Act and the focus around the 
prevention agenda.

Assistive Technology 180,000 Fund the cost of AT equipment, such as careline units, falls detectors, Just 
Checking kits etc., which is mainstream AT.  Also to invest in new and 
emerging technology to pilot the benefits, such as robotic pets.

Housing Options for Older People 
(HOOP) service

40,000 Funding up to £40,000 of adaptations on RBH properties, to enable RBH to 
invest £40,000 in an additional OOP worker to assist with adaptations 
support.

Care Homes Offer 200,000 Fund accident prevention measures in Care Homes, including profiling 
beds, mattresses, gel cushions and AT.  £100,000 to be allocated to homes 
based on identified needs and £100,000 to be available for innovative bids 
from homes.

Contribution to RBH newbuild 
properties for service users 
whose properties the LA are 
unable to adapt

50,000 Utilising up to £30,000 per applicant to provide a DFG in cases where it is 
not possible to adapt the existing property. Facilitated by contributing to 
the cost of a new build scheme being developed by RBH.

Walking Aids 15,000 Social Care staff will be trained to undertake assessments and prescribe 
walking aids so that people at risk of falls can receive low level but 
effective prevention measures in a more timely manner to prevent falls 
and hospital admissions.

Contingency 119,962
Total 2,439,962

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget 
and this was approved by the ICB at its September 2017 meeting. ICB noted 
at its meeting on 29th January 19 the incorporation of the Better Care Fund 
within the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund Section 75 Agreement. The 
updated Section 75 Agreement was duly signed by both Partners on 7th 
March 19 and will be updated as and when appropriate. 

The majority of budgets in the BCF are fixed price contracts but there are 
demand led budgets which could pose a financial risk mainly around the 
provision of equipment. Regular monitoring will allow commissioners to 
mitigate any risks and contingencies are included in the budget which could 
be used to mitigate risks.

Page 13



Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers

CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Gareth Davies 
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

01706 924888 

Page 14



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting- 26th March 2019
Portfolio- Integrated 
Commissioning

Lead Member- Councillor Rowbotham 

Report Author- Gareth Davies Lead Officer- Sam Evans
Public Document

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring Report- 
January 2018/19 

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position 
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2018/19 as at the end of January 
2019. The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) and the GM 
Transformation funding which are being reported separately to the ICB in 
2018/19.The pooled budget has been amended to take into account the 
savings reported in previous reports to ICB. The gap at the end of January on 
the pooled budget is £0.4m, an increase of £0.4m since the position reported 
as at the end of November. This is due to a reduction in the LA contribution 
towards the pooled gap agreed at January ICB from £1.0m to £0.6m. The 
balance of £0.4m  is required to meet increased ASC demand.

End of January monitoring for the Local Authority (LA) provider services will be 
reported to Cabinet in March. The latest forecast is that following the £0.4m 
adjustment reported above Adult Social Care (ASC) and Public Health (PH) 
will be reporting a balanced position, whilst Children’s Social Care (CSC) 
continues to have a significant pressure, this being £5.7m as at the end of 
January. This relates in the main to an increase in the numbers of cared for 
children which is a national trend.
 
The ICB should note that during 2018/19 any LA provider service variations, 
being noted in this report are for information only as it will be for the LA to 
identify mitigating actions. However for future financial years funding of such 
pressures will be subject to the development of the pooled fund 
commissioning arrangements.

The CCG are showing a pressure of £2.7m as at the end of January. The 
CCG pressure is shown in the pool but the CCG have contributed an 
additional amount to the pool from reserves to offset this pressure. The 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



1.5

pressure relates to Acute contracts (£1.4m) and Mental Health placements in 
excess of the Pennine Care block contract (£1.3m). This is £0.9m more than 
reported at the end of November.

The LA’s Cabinet is being asked to approve an additional contribution of 
£0.2m, in addition to the £0.55m approved at January ICB which is the LA’s 
share of the increase in the pooled gap for 2018/19 on a 50:50 basis from the 
Equalisation Reserve. The CFO for the CCG has delegated authority to do this 
on behalf of the CCG, via use of the CCG contingency, which is now fully 
utilised.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

ICB notes the current position for the pooled budget for 2018/19.

ICB notes the funding gap as at the end of January on the pool is £0.4m, to be 
funded 50/50 from the LA and CCG.

ICB notes that the LA will have responsibility to identify mitigating actions for 
the variations in LA Children’s provider services in 2018/19 (£5.7m) identified 
as at the end of January. 

ICB notes that there are £2.7m of pressures on the acute and mental health 
budgets as at the end of January but that the CCG has contributed additional 
funding from reserves to offset this pressure in the pooled accounts.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2018/19 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and 
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership 
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports 
are required.

The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported 
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line 
with NHSE guidelines to progress integration of Adult Social Care and Health 
and is in accordance with the decision made by Cabinet and the CCG 
Governing Body.
 
The operation of a formal pooled budget has been in place from April 2018 in 
line with the agreement for Transformation Funding from the GM Health and 
Social Care Partnership.

BCF graduation has not yet been received from NHSE for the locality; this 
means that reporting of the BCF is required each quarter in line with NHSE 
guidelines.

Page 16



4.4
Alternatives Considered
The operation of a formal pool in 2018/19 is in line with the requirements of 
the GM Health and Social Care Partnership and builds on the shadow pool 
that was operated by the ICB in 2017/18; therefore there are no alternatives to 
consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The changes from the end of November budget position reported to ICB in 
January are listed in Table 1 below;

Budget £m's

Pooled budget as at end of November 2018/19 336.6
CCG
Learning Disability Dowry Funding from Greater 
Manchester 0.1

Total movement in CCG pooled budgets 0.1
LA
No Movement 0

Total movement in LA pooled budgets 0

Pooled budget as at end of January 2018/19 336.7

Variations from November to January budgets

5.2 The change in the CCG budget relates to a Dowry received from Greater 
Manchester towards Learning Disability placements.

5.3 The pooled budget in table 2 as at the end of January has a funding gap of 
£0.4m; this is a £0.4m increase in the November position reported to ICB in 
January. This is due to a reduction in the LA contribution towards the pooled 
gap agreed at January ICB from £1.0m to £0.6m, which is required to meet 
increased ASC demand.

5.4 The CCG and the LA’s Cabinet are being asked to fund an additional £0.2m 
each from their reserves to balance off the increase in the pooled gap for 
2018/19.

5.5 For information, and to support commissioning decisions, the LA provider 
services financial positions are being reported to ICB. The updated 
information for January for the LA’s Children’s provider services is showing a 
net budget pressure of £5.7m which is due to increasing numbers of cared for 
children and the LA is currently undertaking further work to understand this 

Page 17



pressure and to identify mitigating actions. There are no changes to the adult 
social care and public health forecasts of breakeven.

Table 2 
Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2018/19

January monitoring position
2018/19 
Budget

2018/19 
Forecast Variance Narrative

£m's £m's £m's
Adult's Services
Management, Support and 
Commissioning

2.8 2.8 0.0

Adults, Older People and Physical 
Disability

45.4 45.3 -0.1 Reduction in CCG forecast -£0.1m

Learning Disability / Mental Health 53.7 55.0 1.3 Additional costs of Acute Mental Health Beds in 
Pennine Care £0.4m, Priory Beds £0.3m and 
Spot Purchased Acute Mental Health Beds of 
£0.5m, LD Observation costs of £0.1m.

Acute Health Care 112.8 114.1 1.3 Additional costs at Pennine Acute 
£0.6m,Manchester University NHS Foundation 
Trust re high cost trauma activity  
£0.4m,Durnford Dermatology £0.1m, Salford 
and Wrightington in part offset by reduced 
activity at Lancashire Teaching NHS foundation 
trust £0.2m.

Primary Care - Prescribing 29.9 29.9 0.0
Other Services 2.3 2.3 0.0
Adult Public Health 8.1 8.1 0.0
Total Adult Pooled Services 255.0 257.5 2.5

Children's Services
Management, Support and 
Commissioning

3.2 3.2 0.0

Children's Early Intervention 6.0 6.0 0.0
Health Community Services 5.8 5.8 0.0
Learning Disability / Mental Health 5.6 5.6 0.0

Special Educational Needs 3.5 3.5 0.0
Acute Health Care 22.0 22.2 0.2 Overspend on Pennine Acute Children’s 

Services £0.2m
Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0 5.0 0.0
Cared for Children and 
Safeguarding

21.8 21.8 0.0

Primary Care - Prescribing 7.9 7.9 0.0
Other Services 0.8 0.8 0.0
Total Children's Pooled 
Services

81.6 81.8 0.2

Local Transformation Fund 0.1 0.1 0.0

Total Health and Social Care 
Pooled Budgets

336.7 339.4 2.7

Contribution from Partners

CCG -241.9 -244.6 -2.7 Additional CCG contributions to offset pressures 
reported above. 

LA -94.4 -94.4 0.0 La Contribution reduced by £0.4m since 
November position.

Total Contributions -336.3 -339.0 -2.7
Revised Gap 0.4 0.4 0.0 Request to fund £0.2m each from CCG 

contingencies and LA reserves.

 

Page 18



5.6 There are some aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget which 
are listed in table 3 below, these are not under the control of the ICB but are 
included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains 
with the LA or CCG. The main changes in aligned budgets since November 
relate to a £0.1m reduction in Core Running Costs. 

Table 3

Service Host Budget £000's
Health Protection PH 160
Physical Activity PH 631
Smoking PH 33
Other Public Health PH 1,201
Link4Life PH 2,596
Management and Strategy CSC 269
School Improvement CSC 227
School Organisation CSC 68
Schools Personnel CSC 24
Area Special Needs Co Ordinator CSC 466
Educational Psychology CSC 228
Regional Adoption Agency CSC 1,214
Primary Care CCG 7,044
Acute Services CCG 43,645
Core Running Costs CCG 5,629
Primary Care-Co Commissioning CCG 36,317
Total Aligned Services 99,752

Aligned Services

Risk and Policy Implications

The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2018/19. Section 75 of 
the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local authorities and 
health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions.

6.1

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 
than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report.

Page 19



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.1 LA Monitoring working papers

CCG Monitoring working papers

Number 1 Riverside

Number 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Gareth Davies 
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

01706 924888 

Page 20



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

 Date of Meeting 26th March 2019 
Portfolio Health and Social Care 
Report Author Sandra Croasdale  
Public/Private Document Public 

 

Transformation Highlight Report 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1. This paper provides the ICB with an update on the following: 

 
Programme Delivery – describing transformation progress: 

 
• Appendix 1 – Transformation Theme Report 

 
Performance – update on deep dives into deflection delivery and GM Evaluation 

 
Local Care Organisation – update of progress 11 months into operation.   
 
Risk – High level update on operational risk  
 
 

  

Recommendation 
 
2.  To note the content of this paper. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. Report provided for discussion to update members on progress. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 

Programme Delivery 
 
The majority of the transformation interventions have now shifted from mobilisation 
stage to delivery and as such it is important that reporting changes to reflect this. 
Theme reports have now been developed which show progress in the following 
areas: 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 
• Strategic Objectives/benefits delivery 
• Service Activity Measures 
• Risk 
• Expenditure 
• Milestones 

 
 
Progress to note:  
 

• Prevention: Reducing Diabetes: 1975 referrals have been made into the 
service with 934 assessments completed for the NHS Diabetes Prevention 
Programme.   

 
• Prevention: Community Outreach: 353 referrals have been made since the 

service began in April 2018. 
 

• Access: Easy Hubs (Community Connectors) continue on an upward 
trajectory having now connected with over 1,871 residents since May 2018. 
Directory of Service activity continues to outperform the same period in the 
previous year by 35% with over 356,750 hits on the site.  

 
• Primary Care: Focussed Care Workers: 4,864 individuals have now engaged 

with service massively over achieving the annual target of 800. A significant 
ramp up has been seen through the months of December to February. 

 
• Children’s: One System Approach: 3048 Early Help Assessments have now 

been performed; exceeding the annual target of 2331 with 1 month to go. The 
numbers of Early Help Assessments supported and initiated by the locality 
team continues to be the highest number of open Early Help Assessments 
which demonstrates teams are continuing to raise awareness and support 
agencies. 
 

• Children’s: Paediatric Nurse Practitioners have now seen 2786 children since 
mobilisation. The full PNP has now been operating since November 2018 and 
has been able to expand to weekend hours operating out of Whitehall Clinic. 
The impact of this is being seen with direct deflections from the neighbouring 
Urgent Care Centre. In addition, data up to January 19 shows that PNP has 
exceed their annual target to deflect 911 children from A&E by a further 27 
children. 
 
 

• One Rochdale (LCO):  Progress continues in the following areas: 
 Safe Haven: Work scheduled for completion on 22nd March for 

occupation from the 25th March. 
 Enhance Carers: Provider has met key target of supporting 50 

carers who deliver 50+ hours or more, identified at GP. Pre and 
post intervention surveys shows reduction in GP visits.  

 HEATT 2 rolled out on 11th February with partial service cover 
of 37.5hrs per week - January saw 179 incidents on HEATT 1 
with an 82% deflection rate.  

 Primary Care Academy Quickstart programme successfully 
completed by 11 practices. 

 
 

Page 22



Performance  
Service activity measures are now in place for the majority of interventions. These are 
an early indicator as to whether an intervention will be able to deliver its deflections. 
However, understanding deflection delivery is extremely complex and many themes 
reference the ability to track and monitor activity and deflections as a key risk. To 
support this an Activity Monitoring Group has been established which brings 
Commissioners, Business Intelligence and Performance closer together to provide 
analysis of data for each programme. 
 
One of the key pieces of work established by the group was the need to complete 
deep dives into three interventions that have high deflection targets in 2018/19. 
These are: 
 

• Paediatric Nurse Practitioners 
• HEATT Car 
• Enhanced Respiratory 

 
The deep dives have identified the need for more collaborative work across the 
system at operational level. It is envisaged that the Rochdale Sustainability Group 
(discussed in section X below) will support this agenda. A rolling programme of deep 
dives will be established throughout the year.  
 
In addition to understanding deflections it is also crucial that as a system we 
understand the impact of our full transformation programme. Rochdale has been one 
of six localities involved in a joint procurement exercise to identify an evaluation 
partner to work with the locality to evaluate our programme.  
 
Our partner, Cordis Bright, has now been identified and has presented their approach 
to the LCO Board in February. The initial stage of the evaluation will entail a review of 
all relevant documentation and key stakeholder interviews. This will be a two-year 
programme of work delivering an interim report in March 2020 and final report in 
March 2021.  
 
To ensure that the evaluation delivers the specific requirements of the locality a 
locality steering group will be established. Progress updates will be provided in this 
report.  
 
 
 
Local Care Organisation (One Rochdale Health and Care) 
A paper in relation to the contracting form for the LCO going forward will be presented 
to ICB in March. If approved this will require strategic commissioners and the LCO to 
work together to update the existing Partnership Agreement which expires at the end 
of March 2019.  
 
In response to the requirement for the LCO and Strategic Commissioners to work 
closely together to understand deflection delivery, performance and the financial 
challenges of our health and care system, a new Rochdale Sustainability Group 
(RSG) is currently being established and will consist of both commissioning and 
finance representatives. An early draft of the Terms of Reference for this group have 
been produced and the first meeting will take place in April. The purpose of the 
Rochdale Sustainability Group is to provide financial and delivery oversight to those 
involved in the delivery of the Locality Plan within Rochdale. In addition, the RSG will 
oversee the delivery of the savings programme for the Rochdale Locality.  
 
The LCO Board in March agreed to formally sign the Rochdale Locality Investment 

Page 23



Agreement which sets out the financial investment for transformation along with the 
expected benefits to be delivered (deflections). This investment agreement currently 
specifies the benefits as per the GM Roll Up submitted to GM back in June 2018. As 
ICB will be aware these benefits have now been amended following a robust process 
completed in November and approved by ICB in January 2019. The decision to sign 
was therefore made with the caveat that Rochdale Locality had an expectation that 
the Investment Agreement would be refreshed following the submission of operating 
plans in April. 
 
The following describes the key LCO activity in the last month: 
 

• Person and Community Centred Approaches (PCCA) Programme: 
Following the January Workshop, a self-assessment has been completed to 
review how PCCA is integrated into services currently; this has been used to 
develop a Rochdale narrative around PCCA. The PCCA group are working 
with GM to develop a bid for funding to support implementing the PCCA vision 
across Rochdale.  

 
• Neighbourhoods: The Health and Social Care Integrated Neighbourhoods 

Team Steering Group has been established. This group will oversee the 
delivery of the Neighbourhoods project plan and the implementation of all the 
task and finish work programmes.  

 
• Mental Health: Following the October event, a project plan has been 

established for the Mental Health steering group. A workshop for the steering 
group is planned to take place in April to establish the governance to oversee 
the delivery of the mental health work plan.  

 
• Communications & Engagement: A workshop was held in January to bring 

together Communications and Engagement Leads from across the system to 
review the requirements for ORHC. Actions are currently being developed into 
a work plan for the group to take forward. 

 
• New York State Visit: During a visit to GM, the New York State Health 

economy visited the Rochdale system. Feedback received following the visit 
included that they would be showcasing the Rochdale system as an exemplar 
globally.  

 
Risk 
 
The key risk to delivery of transformation deflections is the Planned Care theme.  
Resource, both in terms of capacity and capability, is the single biggest concern for 
planned care. An interim structure has been agreed and one member of staff at 
project manager has been appointed and will start soon. However, senior leadership 
level resource is required to complete a full review of the planned care system as 
agreed previously. 
This month it has not been possible for commissioners, supported by PMO, to 
produce a highlight report.  

  

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The financial information in relation to the transformation programme is provided in a 

separate paper to ICB.  

Page 24



 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 

See risk section above 

  
 

Consultation 
 
7. Theme leads 

One Rochdale Health and Care (LCO) 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. Not applicable Held by the report author, 3rd Floor, Number 

One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 
 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale, scroasdale@nhs.net 
07747 473888 

 

Page 25

mailto:scroasdale@nhs.net


Submission 
Month Mar for Feb SRO: Tracey Harrison

Strategic 
Outcomes:

Service Activity 
Measures:

Risk:

Expenditure

Milestones:

Service Activity Measures:

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

353

20 24

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

1.3

Care homes 65%
Homecare 50%
Intermediate Tier 
55%

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

1004 58 77 146 51 84 54 125 134 66 39 100 TBC 934

1975

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

7.22 50% 54.45%

Risks:
Risk ID Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner/ Editor Likelihood Impact Score Action for Further Control Likelihood Impact Score SRO 

Objective 
Owner

Next Review 
Date

NEW Smoking in Pregnancy: Staffing The scheme funds 1.5WTE staff and the 
specialist midwife (1WTE) who is the 
member of staff to deliver this project has 
been, and continues to be, on long term sick 
leave with no assurance given as to when 
she may return.

Elizabeth Wilson 5 4

20

Commissioners are writing 
formally to the head of midwifery 
to express concerns about the 
performance of the service and 
to seek assurances as to how 
PAHT will rectify the situation. 
This letter will be issued in 
March. Depending on the 
response to this, options will be 
assessed.

3 3

9

Tracey 
Harrison

Expenditure Profile (£'000): Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act F/C F/C F/C Act
Year Int Name Expeniture Type Act/Plan 'P1 Apr 'P2 May 'P3 June 'P4 July P5 Aug P6 Sep P7 Oct 'P8 Nov P9 Dec 'P10 Jan 'P11 Feb 'P12 March 'Full Year YTD

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Actual 38 41 81 92 107 6 143 89 (1) 26 106 371 1,098 622

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Plan . 38 41 81 92 107 6 143 89 (1) 19 106 371 1,092 615

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Var 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 7 7

Number of flouride varnish interventions to children in identified cohort 

Children's Oral Health

Int No Service Activity TPI Target
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

54.93% 54.10% 54.31%

Number of initial assessments completed for the NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme

Reducing Diabetes

Int No Service Activity TPI Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

1.5
Number of referrals made into the service 539 639 463 334

% of front line targeted staff trained in front line settings
74.4% in Care Homes trained
100% of targeted staff in the 

intermediate tier service

79.4% in Care Homes trained
100% of targeted staff in the 

intermediate tier service
100% of targeted staff in the intermediate tier service

100% of targeted staff in the 
intermediate tier service

Elderley Oral Health

Int No Service Activity TPI Target
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

118 173

New community led peer support activites set up 3 14 7

Prevention Theme Report

High Level Statement

There is no deflection data at present for the Prevention Theme as a direct link from the interventions to the strategic objectives is difficult to identify through data in almost all cases. However in Q3 CCG data identifies possible contribution from the Elderly Oral Health to savings from Care Homes for A&E admissions in 
comparison to same quarter last year. Costs are down by £31.5K and the total length of stay for this cohort is down by 114 bed days. This data is in the build up to January where usually numbers increase, however indications show that this year the increase may be smaller than in previous. CCG data  for Secondary elected in 
Q3 is showing figures are down from 21 days  last year to 9 days this year, elected cases in excess bed days has had a sharp increase this is shown to be down to 2 individual cases and between them they have created 30 excess bed days. However overall the data and information gathered from the Elderly Oral Health program 
provider is showing that the intervention is moving in the right direction.. 

All interventions are exceeding expectations in terms of  uptakle of the service, shown below in the Service Activity Measures. Community Outreach was also asked to offer employment to three people previously unemployed, which has now been achieved. Self-Care continues to come together with a number of initiatives now 
in place. A self-management service developing new pathways for people with long term conditions such as COPD, Diabetes and Cancer has received a high number of referrals and is now working at capacity. A business case was put forwards for additional funds to enhance the service, the outcome of this will be shared once 
received. 

Controls

The 0.5WTE support worker and the manager of the service are working as best 
they can to cover the workload whilst the other member of staff is off, however 
this is not a sustainable solution in the long term.

There is one red risk associated to staffing in the smoking in pregnancy intervention, deatils below. Also the board are asked to note that personal budgets may hinder residents ability to purchase required mouthcare materials in Elderly Oral Health, they will be low on the list of priority sundries, reactive changes are not 
considered when setting budgets, care homes may not supply Oral Care stock. Also, a procurement process is in it's 4th stage to identify a new provider for Reducing Diabete's. 

All interventions are largely on track with a small amount of underspend due in Community Outreach and Self Care which is being managed.

Community Outreach: New Open Door Team now recruited to work alongside the Community Outreach in the Integrated Prevention System. Meetings taken place with CCG primary care colleagues to agree primary care pathways, to be finalised once the primary care networks are agreed and implications of investment from 
the NHS Long Term Plan is understood. Core team neighbourhood meetings arranged.
Community Outreach: The Connecting You: Seed Fund and Connecting You: Development Fund continue to progress well and funding is being allocated community and volutary groups to strengthen community assets. A total of 26 organisations have applied to the development fund and successful projects will be allocated 
early April.

Community Outreach

Int No Service Activity TPI Target
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

1.2
Total number of referrals going on to a set plan (Coaches & Health Trainers) 62

C:\Users\stacey.brogan\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LU8GM3IS\NEW Transformation HLR Prevention - March 2019 FINALTheme Prevention 1 of 1  18/03/2019  14:46

P
age 26



Submission 

Month 
Mar for Feb SRO: Tracey Harrison

Strategic 

Outcomes:

Service Activity 

Measures:

Risk:

Expenditure:

Milestones:

Service Level Indications:

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

Quarterly: 60,000 

Annually: 240,000
356,750

Monthly: 20,000 30,801 26,724 25,094 28,309 28,781 34,655 33,752 32,473 23,831 40,361 38,818 13,151 356,750

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

2.0 1,230 1,817

Risks:
Risk ID Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner/ Editor Likelihood Impact Score Action for Further 

Control
Likelihood Impact Score SRO 

Objective 
Owner

Next Review 
Date

RRID#2.2.4 Housing Triage: Outcomes There is a risk that this intervention fails to 

achieve the assigned deflection target set, 

based on current investment, resource and 

activity 

Tracey Harrison 4 4

16

Issue of deflection 

target has been 

escalated to Programme 

Director and Theme 

Lead to see if there is a 

solution within the 

wider Health and 

Housing Agenda that 

can support this 

2 4

8

Daryl Lawrence 01/03/2019

Expenditure Profile (£'000): Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act F/C F/C F/C Act

Year Int Name Expeniture Type Act/Plan 'P1 Apr 'P2 May 'P3 June 'P4 July P5 Aug P6 Sep P7 Oct 'P8 Nov P9 Dec 'P10 Jan 'P11 Feb 'P12 March 'Full Year YTD

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Actual 30 38 50 28 34 7 35 26 31 25 32 90 426 304

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Plan . 30 38 50 28 34 7 35 26 31 32 32 91 435 311

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Var 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8) 0 (1) (9) (8)

Q4

Number of residents (individuals) had an initial assessment completed To end of February 2019 1085Mid May to  (mid-November)  759

Service Activity TPI Target Q1 Q2 Q3

Q4
Int No

Controls

A review of the service has been instigated that will help form a series of 

recommendations for how the service can better monitor it's impact and also 

how it can better influence the wider housing and health agenda to facilitate the 

system-wide meeting of the targets assigned to this programme

A further dataset monitoring process will be implemented imminently, that will 

be able to provide a better understanding of the activity data on a case by case 

basis. This analysis can inform strategic transformational planning for the 

improvement of the Housing and Health & Social Care System 

Access Theme Report

High Level Statement

Directory of Services: The development of the core "Our Rochdale" is complete and the project is ready to be handed over into business as usual. Development of the wellbeing checker tool is still to be completed but can continue beyond project closure as a small separate project until completion in April/May.  The 

number of users accessing the directory continues to rise and is currently approximately 9,000 individuals per month.  Whilst there is no way to establish that this directly results in deflections there is undoubtedly a value in providing advice and signposting to these individuals.  Work is under way to assess user 

demographics against site usage to enable a deeper understanding of the site's value.

Easy Hubs: The service is working to address residents needs across a range of areas identified as the BIG 6 1. Employment, Volunteering, Training 2. Housing 3. Money Management, Benefits 4. Lifestyle, Mental Wellbeing including 5ways2wellbeing 5. Access to Preventative services 6. Getting involved in 'Our 

Communities'. Most residents accessed the service for more than one area of need based around the BIG 6. Matching the data for identified needs of residents against an adapted Maslow 's Hierarchy of needs shows that the service is assisting 50% of residents to move from deficiency needs to growth needs, these are 

also vulnerable individuals and families.

Housing Triage: is currently under review to form a series of recommendations for how the service can better monitor its impact and how it can better influence the wider housing and health agenda. The review has so far found that from 1st April - 31st December 2018 the service assisted 158 residents with 

interventions that have resulted in spend from the housing budget. We know that the service assisted significantly more residents and professionals than this in terms of providing advice and assistance where use of the budget is not required. However this is not currently being captured by the service. Robust processes 

will be put in place going forward. Recommendations are due in the next reporting period.

Directory of Services: At project outset a target of 20,000 page hits per month was established as a target based on comparative traffic for directories in other boroughs; current traffic volumes are c. 40,000 users per month.  Feedback about the site is consistently positive.

Easy Hubs: Latest activity figures show that the service is gradually increasing uptake of residents across the borough in line with predicted targets. Work has been undertaken with the communications team to raise awareness of the Hubs. This promotional activity resulted in a slight spike in service usage but did not 

affect service usage at the hubs.

Housing Triage has a red risk around tracking the benefits of the service, work is ongoing to review the service, recomendations are due in the next reporting period.  There are no significant risks relating to Directory of Service.  However it should be noted that if the service is to remain adequately supported in future, 

additional funding will need to be identified beyond transformation funds for the extra support post that was introduced within the FIS team as part of the project and to continue the £5K per annum contribution toward the site supplier's annual maintenance costs which increased due to the upgrade and additional 

content. 

Expenditure for Directory of Services is up to February comprises £26k+VAT for the development work plus £1.2k for Google Analytics training.   There will be an additional £5k contribution toward the annual maintenance invoice in March which will bring the total in year to £32.2k. 

Directory of Services: Project closure is planned for March, handing over business as usual to the Family Information Services Team with the exception of the continued development of the wellbeing checker by the existing task and finish group as a smaller project coordinated by the CCG IT Project Manager - anticipated 

end for that task will be April/May 2019.

Easy Hubs: Rochdale Infirmary hub opens in partnership with Safe Heaven MH Teams update March 2019 - building work has commenced at Rochdale Infirmary to convert the space to accommodate assessment of clients with Mental Health needs - Commencement of community connectors working in job centres for 

wider outreach work with job centres update March 2019 - pilot commenced December 2018 - Community Connector staff completed person centred approaches train the trainer course update March 2019 - tender document being written - Commencement of pilot project Community Connectors and' Living With and 

Beyond Cancer' update March 2019 - business case being developed to scope out training required and cost - Commencement of pilot project at specific GP Practices - Frequent Flyers update March 2019 - GP practices identified, service manager to meet with practice staff to discuss project outline.       

Directory of Service

Easy Hubs

Int No

Service Activity TPI Target
Q1 Q2 Q3

92,330

2.0 Total number of hits on Directory of Services website

82,619 91,745 90,056

C:\Users\stacey.brogan\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LU8GM3IS\NEW Transformation HLR Access March 2019 FINALTheme Access 1 of 1  18/03/2019  14:50

P
age 27



Submission Month 
Mar for Feb SRO: Karen Kenton

Strategic Outcomes

Service Activity 

Measures

Risk

Expenditure

Milestones

Deflections shown as Actual vs Plan (Plan is ICB approved new baseline) Key Var: (ive)  = GOOD

Year Int Name Strategic Objective Act/Plan 'P1 Apr 'P2 May 'P3 June 'P4 July P5 Aug P6 Sep P7 Oct 'P8 Nov P9 Dec 'P10 Jan 'P11 Feb 'P12 March 'Full Year YTD

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice a. A&E presentations Actual (58) (71) (71) (79) (67) (97) (121) (124) (98) (152) 0 0 (510) (938)

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice a. A&E presentations Plan (64) (64) (64) (64) (64) (64) (64) (80) (80) (100) (100) (104) (911) (911)

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice a. A&E presentations Var Act vs Plan 6 (7) (7) (15) (3) (33) (57) (44) (18) (52) 100 104 400 (27)

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice b. Non-elective admissions Actual (15) (18) (18) (20) (17) (25) (31) (32) (25) (39) 0 0 (205) (240)

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice b. Non-elective admissions Plan (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (26) (28) (310) (310)

2018-19 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice b. Non-elective admissions Var Act vs Plan 11 7 7 5 8 1 (5) (6) 1 (13) 26 28 105 69

Acute Deflections Performance Charts

Service Activity Measures:

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

7.1
Total number of Early Health Assessments 

completed 
2331 257 363 365 300 272 231 277 261 247 283 192 3048

Expenditure across Family Services Model is largely on track. There are currently vacancies across the HYM element of the Family Services Model, plans are in place to fill these positions. 

One System milestones have been achieved with the exception of the Alliance development which is currently paused. PNP milestones for the next quarter include agreed business plan re weekend clinics; Mobilise Well Family Navigator Education Sessions; Agree Quality Improvement Targets for wider Peadiatric Urgent Care Improvement 

Plan with interface to PNP including Observation and Assessment targets to address NEL.

Strategic Outcomes vs Jan 2019 Baseline Targets

One System Approach

Int No Service Activity TPI Target
Q1 Q2

Family Services Model Theme Report

High Level Statement

One System: continues to act as the vehicle for localised integration, with pathways becoming more embedded we are starting to see results of co-location enabling rapid and joint assessments, reducing multiple contacts and duplication. The number of referrals (contacts) to the CEHASH remains at a high level yet the numbers which are 

an early help assessment at the point of referral has increased. The numbers closed by the first response has also increased as it is suspected that as there is the ability to step down to the locality teams where support can remain in place there is therefore more confidence across the system. This reporting month has also seen an increase 

in the numbers of Early Health Assessments carried out by private nurseries and housing providers which demonstrates the continued roll out of the approach, the enabling teams are continuing to support stakeholders to ensure the team around the family meetings are undertaken following the Early Health Assessments.

Paediatrics Nurse Practice (PNP): data showing clear evidence of deflections from Urgent Care now exceeding original targets, a trend that has continued to increase throughout 2018/19 and with increased staffing in place will continue through to the new financial year. In February 2019 the PNP team became fully staffed with all 5 PNP's 

in post allowing expansion of the service to cover weekend working at the Whitehall Clinic (opposite Urgent Care Centre). This has resulted in direct deflections from the Urgent Care Centre. Non Elective Admissions, whilst a more complicated deflection to measure, have begun to increase and have achieved targets in the months of 

October, November and January. Further work is taking place in partnership with Pennine Acute's Oldham site to support direct deflection from Non Elective Admissions. (Data for the period of Feb - March is not yet available).

Both One System and Paediatrics Nurse Practice are showing positive Service Activity levels. The impact of a full PNP team can be clearly seen in both activty and deflection measures and will continue to increase into the new financial year. One System data is also showing that the intervention has now exceeded their annual target for 

completed Early Health Assessments and is forcasting to continue this upward trend. However as above the number referred to CSC and the numbers of children and young people identified as Looked After has also increase, a dip sample tracking exercise is currently being undertaken across the FSM cohort. This is a significant piece of 

work which will reported on in the coming months.

The PNP Service is delivered by Pennine Care who has recently given notice on the Children's Community Services contract. The service is currently in the middle of a procurement process. This is likely to place additional pressures on staff and may impact upon staff retention. It must be noted by the board that if the service was to move to 

an acute provider, nursing staff may be utilised to support acute priorities. This must be avoided and a clear service specification must be in place in order to protect this project.

One System has two risks as shown below are identified as red; 1) Failure to deliver deflections 2) Deflections achievement- both of these relate to the deflection set in the original bid relating to reduction in looked after children and reduction in children subject to CP. These number are increasing rather than decreasing, it is hoped the dip 

sample referred to can demonstrate the difference in the end result for those CYP who have been supported via the locality enabling team.

Q3 Q4

(160)

(140)

(120)

(100)

(80)

(60)

(40)

(20)

0

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

a. A&E Attendances

Actual Plan

(45)

(40)

(35)

(30)

(25)

(20)

(15)

(10)

(5)

0

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10b. NEL Admissions

Actual Plan

C:\Users\stacey.brogan\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LU8GM3IS\NEW Transformation Highlight Report Children's - March 2019 FINALTheme Children's 1 of 2  18/03/2019  14:50

P
age 28



Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

7.5 Total number of attendances at PNP Clinics 173 211 210 233 199 295 359 364 291 451 2786

Risks:

Risk ID Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner/ Editor Likelihood - 

Baseline

Impact - 

Baseline

Score - 

Baseline

Action for Further Control Likelihood - 

Current

Impact - 

Current

Score - 

Current

SRO 

Objective 

Owner

Next Review 

Date

RRID#7.1.1 One System: Potential failure to deliver deflections There is a risk that One System 

Approach scheme will not achieve the 

anticipated deflections of children in 

care despite evidence that the number 

of Early Help Assessments has 

increased. 

Kylie Thornton

4 4 16

Stocktake to take place followed by 

further review when data fully 

understood.

Evaluation of outcomes, 

incorporating partner voice and 

impact plus recommendations for 

the way forward (FSM 

transformation money runs out in 

Sept 19) will be given to Board for 

discussion and decision at the April 

Board  (Thursday 18th April, 12 

noon, Town hall)

Its anticipated that the Board will 

want to propose a business case to 

request further transformation 

funding.

3 4 12

Karen 

Kenton

01/03/2019

RRID#7.1.8 One System: Deflections Achievements There is a risk that achievment of the 

defelctions within the one system 

theme  namley reductions in the 

number of social care packages will not 

be achieved. 

Kylie Thornton

4 5 20

Engagement with  DCS

4 4 16

Karen 

Kenton

01/03/2019

Expenditure Profile (£'000): Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act F/C F/C F/C Act

Year Int Name Expeniture Type Act/Plan 'P1 Apr 'P2 May 'P3 June 'P4 July P5 Aug P6 Sep P7 Oct 'P8 Nov P9 Dec 'P10 Jan 'P11 Feb 'P12 March 'Full Year YTD

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Actual 100 73 119 83 111 96 121 117 137 138 117 160 1,371 1,094

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Plan . 100 73 119 83 111 96 121 117 137 182 71 160 1,370 1,139

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Var 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (44) 45 0 1 (44)

Int No Target
Q1 Q2 Q3

Paediatrics Nurse Practice

Service Activity TPI
Q4

Controls

A detailed review of data (stocktake) will be completed by the end of 

October which would give a clearer understanding of how the One 

System Approach is  impacting on service delivery/practice and 

deflections.

Develop mechanism to evaluate to the FSM to demonstarte the effect 

and undertand the reasoins for increases in care packages. Evaulate 

against GM, national trends and identify areas of learning. 

C:\Users\stacey.brogan\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LU8GM3IS\NEW Transformation Highlight Report Children's - March 2019 FINALTheme Children's 2 of 2  18/03/2019  14:50

P
age 29



Submission 

Month 
Mar for Feb SRO: Sarah Crossley

Strategic 

Outcomes:

Service Activity 

Measures:

Risk:

Expenditure:

Milestones:

Service Activity Measures:

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 YTD

3.4 Focused Care Workers
Total number of clients engaged with 

Focussed Care
800 175 217 247 284 332 384 443 562 685 724 811 4864

Expenditure Profile (£'000): Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act Act F/C F/C F/C Act

Year Int Name Expeniture Type Act/Plan 'P1 Apr 'P2 May 'P3 June 'P4 July P5 Aug P6 Sep P7 Oct 'P8 Nov P9 Dec 'P10 Jan 'P11 Feb 'P12 March 'Full Year YTD

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Actual 23 25 64 42 45 41 43 40 45 39 45 51 503 407

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Plan . 23 25 64 42 45 41 43 40 45 51 45 51 515 419

2018-19 0 Total Expenditure Var 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (12) 0 0 (12) (12)

Expenditure across the theme in on track. Clinical Pharma: Expenditure for 2018/19 FY has been within agreed limits, Category M Price changes continue to have an impact on prescribing costs 

Clinical Pharma: Securing agreements from HMR CCG Gps and LCO representatives. At this time, current Medicines Optimisation Team work, with the potential additional beenefits of additional staff in delivering on the agenda will be considered. 

Int No Service Activity TPI Target

Focussed Care Workers

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Primary Care Theme Report

High Level Statement

Primary Care is an enabling theme and has no direct strategic objectives to achieve. However some of the broader benefits of the theme are: 

Outcomes for patient and families: 

- Support patients who are in themost vulnerable and chaotic families, by supporting better integration of care

- Improved well being of individuals and famil wellbeing

- the needs of the patient are considered int eh context of the family and houselhold in which they live.  Providing opportunity to holsitically assess and develop solutions

- to make good health an ambition for all patients enrolled on Focused Care

FOR GPs:

- Releasing time 

Increased levels of satisfaction 

- Clinical discussions are holistic using data intelligence from across sectors adn participants to help develop a pathway tailored tothe patient and their environment

clinical practice improvement for complex patients at the intersections of multiple helath and social care needs

For the local service: 

- boroughwide transfromation in the way that primary care works with patients and their families experiencing multiple health problems 

Clinical Pharma: Prescribing measures are being agreed with RHA,work with then be done with GP practices to deliver these measures as integral to the Core + agreements. Focussed Care Workers: The number of clients engaged with the service has more than exceeded all expectations and continues to rise. This 

has been greatly aided by the positive engagement with the GP surgerys, the take up clearly shows that there is confidence in the outcomes of the intervention.

Clinical Pharma: Some preliminary discussions have occurred at the March LEG meetings and MDP related to the Core+ proposals for 2019/20. As yet the financial and quality components have not been finally agreed. Once these have been signed off by the CCG and LCO, work of the Medicines Optimisation 

Team can continue. The LCO will not commit to use of transformational monies to deliver additional savings until full details are produced. It should be noted that it is unlikely that recruitment of clinical pharmacists will have any impact on secondary care attendance / expenditure. Focussed Care Workers: There 

is a risk that due to the funding structure the provider may wish to reduce service delivery model in year 2 in line with tappered funding due to recruitment issues which resulted in FCW beign recruited at a higher band.  Discussion are ongoing with the provider to mitigate against this, to review slippage, and 

implementation of further borough wide model. This may or may not impact on ability to deliver outcomes.  This is an emerging risk and further discussions are ongoing with the provider to establish full nature and extent and the  risk register will be updated accordingly. 

C:\Users\stacey.brogan\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\LU8GM3IS\NEW Transformation HLR Primary Care- March 2019 FINALTheme Primary Care 1 of 4  18/03/2019  14:52

P
age 30



Theme Lead Exec Summary: WORKFORCE

3 subgroups have been established and stakeholders identified. These include: Rosemary Barker (Brand and Identity) Zoe Bennett and Andy Turner (Hard to Fill Posts), and Lucy Morris (Culture 

Change) 

Culture: The subgroup now consists of 6 members from across different organisations. An open space culture event will be held in the summer; outcomes from this event will help to shape next 

steps in terms of defining culture and the change we’re hoping to achieve. Consideration is also being given to a culture change survey. The  Workforce Collaborative Fund Application (Self-Care) 

has been approved, for a programme to drive a positive culture change within HMR health and social care system. This programme is aspirational by being inclusive of all sectors. 

Next Period: The subgroup will meet again in the next few months to finalise plans for the culture change event (event to be held later in the year). 

Brand & Identity: A high level statement has been drafted with Comms to be included in recruitment literature encompassing our place USP.  This statement was positively received by members 

of the LWTG who have provided Comms with some organisational specific content to further develop this. The group met again on 13th February 2019 to progress this work. Website copy and 

images supplied to our web team in late February. Draft page created on site, which now requires some edits and updates from Comms before going live at the end of March 2019.

Next Period: Sub group to hold a furter meeting to review the implementation of the website and collate any feedback, whilst also sharing links and examples of the content with relevant partners 

in a view to other partners utilising this information.

Hard to Fill Posts: Following the unsuccessful bid for a Locality system-wide Apprenticeship Coordinator in 2018/19, a new proposal was submitted on the 4th March for 2019/20 in view of 

receiving a Workforce Development Grant. The proposal is for an Apprenticeship Coordinator who will identify Apprenticeship opportunities throughout the Rochdale partnership and then 

support recruitment or staff development activity. The outcomes will feed into the Greater Manchester Combined Authority Public Sector group, with a view to prompting best practice over GM. 

The outcome of the application will be known in April 2019.

Next Period: A further meeting of the group will be established following feedback from GM Representatives from the locality will be attending ‘Filling Difficult Gaps’ workshop on 12th March.

Theme Lead Exec Summary: IM&T

Graphnet: The system went technically live on 3rd December.  Data sharing framework signed off in October; currently (5 Feb 2019) 32 GP practices have signed agreements. Pennine Acute, 

BARDOC, Rochdale Council, Springhill Hospice and Pennine Care are also signed up. The shared record now includes data from the Patient Demographics Service;  GP Practices;  Pennine Acute 

admissions, discharges and transfers and Adult Social Care. Docman share integration is being progressed. Pennine Acute (INTs), BARDOC, RBC, Springhill Hospice have access to the system. 25 GP 

practices are currently live with the rest of those signed up going through technical activation. Pennine Care has a revised go live date of 25th March.  Work is ongoing to provide access for 

Pennine Acute EMIS Symphony users.

The Nerve Centre project board ToR and membership is being revised to move from project delivery into ongoing oversight and development.   A workgroup on collaborative care planning within 

the system will meet from April. 

The ICT team continues to engage with involved organisations and support take up of the system

Next Period: Phase 2 will look at Care Plans, Self Care, Business Intelligence and Population Health.

Directory of Services: Website traffic is approximately 35% higher than the previous year (before project implementation) the site now serving between 8-9k unique users per month.  The review 

of Health categories is now under way with an associated list of per category contacts being compiled. Work to review analytics reporting will be arranged in March between the FIS and the CCG BI 

team.  The wellbeing checker model was approved and the supplier is producing a beta version with an aim to hold a workshop when this is ready (ideally in March).  The home page has been 

simplified for ease of use and better on screen organisation.   A possible upgrade to the site “DS5” platform has been ruled out following discussions with the supplier about their development 

roadmap.

The project to deliver the directory of services as an upgrade to the Family Services Directory is complete and a project closure report will be tabled to the steering group in March.  Quarterly 

oversight meetings will be arranged thereafter with a reduced membership, to oversee continued reporting (including to Prevention & Access Board).

Risk: There is a risk that the hard to fill posts could potentially be due to national shortages on key role types. Escalated to the Workforce Board if the issues cannot be resolved through the sub 

group meetings.

Risk: The previous risk around construction delays for Safe Haven is coming to a close with the work scheduled for completion on 22nd March for occupation from the 25th March

Reporting period:

February 2019

Theme Leads: 

ESTATES - Sarah Butler

WORKFORCE - Rosemary 

Barker

IM&T - Paul Chadwick

COMMS & ENGAGEMENT- 

Alison Mitchell

PMO: Emily VynneTheme: ENABLERS

Theme Lead Exec Summary: ESTATES 

The two main areas of focus from an estates perspective remain to be the EASY Hubs and the Mental Health Living Well Hub & Safe Haven. This highlight report also provides a progress update on 

the Locality Asset Review and Rochdale Infirmary Master planning. 

EASY Hubs: Community Connectors form part of the ‘EASY Hub’ offer. Stage 1 is live  and staff have been moved in. Formal occupancy arrangements have been agreed for the 4 locations. 

Interdependency with Safe Haven at Rochdale Infirmary has been worked through from an operational and tenancy perspective. Cabinet paper regarding leases to be deferred; requires clarity 

regarding usage of space and sharing space with safe haven at the infirmary. 

For stage 2, an Outline Business Case has been drafted and issued to NHS England, await response. Phase 2 will only be progressed after a review of the current service has been undertaken (6-12 

months). In addition, some Better Care Funding has been allocated to enable some of the capital remodelling works, if required. Other options for utilising this funding can be explored via the 

Locality Asset Review in line with the BCF funding criteria. 

Mental Health Living Well Hub & Safe Haven: A Mental Health Living Well Hub and Safe Haven Steering Group has been established to progress this work at the Rochdale Infirmary. An temporary 

alternative location has been identified for the Community Connectors whilst the works are being undertaken. 

The planned scheme completion date is anticipated for Friday 15th March 2019 and a soft launch will take place towards the end of March. 

Next Period:  Remodeling works to be completed.

Urgent Care GP Streaming:  Currently under review as part of the Urgent Care Review.

Locality Asset Review: This Period: The Stage 3 Workshop Report was issued in draft on the 16th November 2018 and initial comments and feedback have been collated. The report has been 

updated and is currently going through governance.  Next period: Finalise Stage 3 of the report.

Page 31



Risk: Graphnet: Sign ups have not yet been received from 7 out of the 36 GP practices or from Pennine Care. This is not holding back the system but means some patients in the borough will not 

benefit from care supported by shared records.

Risk: None to report at present.

Theme Lead Exec Summary: COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT:

Ongoing promotion of Our Rochdale Connecting You and hubs: Continued promotion of community connectors including promotion of the walk in hubs sessions via social media and other media 

inc Crescent Radio and engagement events. Evidence shows usage of service has increased since targetted comms taken place.  

Next period: Continued promotion of hubs walk ins and service generally via geographical facebook groups. Programme of resourced internal and external advertising of connectors planned. 

Continued comms support to promote Connecting You development fund.

Share For You (Graphnet): Continued circulation of share for you resources to practices and other public places and continued sharing of animation to public screens and via social media

Next period: New phase of internal comms planned specifically for adult care and staff in neighbourhoods now specific systems are go live w/e 4th March.

Community Engagement: Recent engagement event held in partnership with One Rochdale (LCO) to promote emerging outcomes of transformation programme successfully undertaken attracting 

50 stakeholders inc 8 or 9 local councillors. 

Next period: Evaluation of event will inform ongoing schedule of events in partnership with One Rochdale aswell as sharing outcomes 

One Rochdale Communications Partnership: There is a proposal for there to be a One Rochdale Communications Representative at the LCO Leadership Board and further updates will be provided 

once the representative has been decided.

Self Care Agenda: This period: Communications representatives from Rochdale Council and HMR CCG attend the Self Care Reference Group to assess when appropriate communications support is 

required. 

Next Period: Communications support to focus on promotion of my COPD app that will be used to benefit patients in the borough

Page 32



One Rochdale Health & Care

Transformation Schemes Highlight Report
Month Mar for Feb

Year 2019

Scheme Primary Care Academy High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb
Completed by Amanda Clegg

SRO Sign Off Amanda Clegg

Scheme Core + 2 RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb
Completed by Amanda Clegg

SRO Sign Off Amanda Clegg

Scheme A&E Streaming RAG/Score
Submission 

Month 

Completed by

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme HEATT RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Ruth Chamberlain

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme Enhanced Carers RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

15

Completed by Helen Wray

15

SRO Sign Off Jane Myers

15

Scheme Substance Misuse High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Jess Marsi

SRO Sign Off Tracey Harrison

Scheme MH Urgent Care Offer RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Yasmin Khan

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme

MH - Out of Hospitals 

Offer (open door Hub)
RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Yasmin Khan

This highlight report is provided to update the Rochdale System Governance on the progress on the in-scope transformation schemes for One Rochdale Health & Care 

LCO. 

Deflections Milestones

Key Highlight

HEATT 2 rolled out on 11th February with partial service cover of 37.5hrs per week. EMIS has been implemented which has created 

some aditional workload in the outset which is being worked through.

Key Highlight

This scheme is currently paused due to the wider urgent care/ out of hours system wide review

Key Highlight

Continued progress against targets and detailed preperation of year end report, with supporting evidence to support achievement. 

6 practices live with online consultations - all expected to be live by 31.3.2019. Quickstart programme successfully completed by 11 

practices - supports improved working processes. Workflow optiisation launch event held for all practices. Engagement with 

commisisoner and practices in respect of Core plus proposals for 2019/20.

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Key Risks High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Risks - 1x dual diagnosis worker still to commence 

in post, date to be confirmed. This member of staff 

has been recruited however so risk is low and now 

all vacant posts have now been recruited to. Slight 

risk that there may be some initial issues with 

deflection monitoring accross both elements of 

transformation scheme whilst staff adapt and 

develop the best practise to record these. This 

should only have short term, minimal impact. 

Milestones - 1x Dual diagnosis worker commenced in post on 4/3/2019, 

currently awaiting start date for the second. ALS team at Rochdale Infirmary 

have now started recording deflections. Business case is well underway and 

first draft should be completed at the end of March. No further updates at this 

current time. 

Key Highlight

Construction work is underway at the the Rochdale UCC Safe Haven, the work is scheduled for completion on the 22nd Marchfor 

occupation from the 25th March.  The timescales for completion have been put back by 1 week due to additional ventilaition work. 

Key Highlight

Continued progress against targets and detailed preperation of year end report, with supporting evidence to support achievement. 

6 practices live with online consultations - all expected to be live by 31.3.2019. Quickstart programme successfully completed by 11 

practices - supports improved working processes. Workflow optiisation launch event held for all practices. Engagement with 

commisisoner and practices in respect of Core plus proposals for 2019/20

Expenditure'  Year end account of 

income/expenditure scheduled

Milestones.

 Operating within agreed mobilisationdelivery plans. Plans monitored through 

contract frameworks.

Risks

- Risks re Making Space have been upgraded as 

information this month was innacurate and not 

shared on time. This results in further violation of 

the default issued. 

Milestones

- Provider is producing monthly case studies to evidence  A&E and GP 

deflections. 

- Project team is taking forward the up-scale of pilot to include all GP practice 

in the borough. N Compass are producing implementation plan, and reviewing 

proposed KPIs. 

Key Highlight - Deflections for the substance misuse transformation scheme are now being recorded. A full set of deflection figures 

will be achieved once the final Dual Diagnosis worker is in post. 

Deflections - Are now being recorded (ALS team) 

and can be added to monthly highlight reports. 

Once both Dual Diagnosis workers are in post a 

meeting will be held to discuss how deflections will 

be monitored going forwards for that particular 

aspect of the transformation scheme. 

Expenditure - Allocated finance for transformation scheme has been carried 

forward and is now being spent as all staff now in post, with one remaining 

member of staff due to commence in post in the near future (awaiting start 

date from Pennine Care). 

Key Highlight

All practitioners are in post and working actively to build relationships with their cluster INT teams leads, GPs and other 

organisationsin the locality. 

Draft Open Door Policy has been developed and is currently out for consultation. 

Deflections Expenditure

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme Key Risks 

Risks Milestones

IF Making Space do not provide information in clear and timely 
manner THEN service activity cannot be understood

IF Making Space do not increase activity THEN outcomes for 
enhanced carers will not be met

Funding for Making Space has been eliminated from transofrmaiton 
for 19/20, however there is a contractual obligation for 19/20. The 
level of risk to expenditure will become apparent at the review at the 
end of the default period. 

Key Risks 

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Deflections Expenditure

Key Highlight

- N Compass have met key target of supporting 50 carers who deliver 50+ hours or more, identified at GP

- Pre and post intervention surveys shows reduction in GP visits 

- Legal advice has been sought re the Making Space default and contract, a decision can only be made regarding the contract at the 

end of the default period. This is a risk as the transformation funding for 19/20 has been eliminated. 

Deflections

- Service Activity is shown below 

- BI developed graphs from the information 

provided by N Compass from pre and post 

intervention surveys. Only includes data for 25 

cares, as many who are being supported currently 

will not have completed intervention or post-

survey. Shows decrease in GP visits 

Expenditure

- On target, but potential risk to 19/20 expenditure re Making Space

Page 33



SRO Sign Off 

Completed by

MH - Out of Hospitals 

Offer (Clozapine in the 

Community)
RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Yasmin Khan 

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme

MH - Out of Hospitals 

Offer (AMHP Rochdale)

RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Yasmin Khan 

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme

MH Primary Care In INT - 

Clinical Psychologist/ 

Trauma Training

RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by

SRO Sign Off 

Scheme Dom Care INT RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Helen Wray

SRO Sign Off Jane Myers

Scheme Night Service High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Helen Wray

SRO Sign Off Jane Myers

Scheme End of Life/Palliative Care High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme RAG/Score

Submission 

Month Mar for Feb

Completed by Shirley Henderson

SRO Sign Off Paula Rosbotham

Scheme Care Homes INT High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme RAG/Score
Submission 

Month Mar for Feb
12

Completed by Helen Wray

12

SRO Sign Off Jane Myers 16

12

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Key Highlight

Service fully mobilised and operational. 

Deflections Expenditure

Risks

Key risks are in regards to the lack of consultation 

rooms for 121 sessions, group work and staff 

accomodation within the vicinity of the INT team,  a 

request for accomodation has been submitted to 

the SEG for consideration.  

Milestones

-Finalise Open Door Operational Policy

-Continue to monitor activity and the number of people accessing the service 

for support

Key Highlight

Psychology services in Middleton INT - All estates risks identified at storage world have been resolved, the staff have moved back 

into the offices with the INT team.

Trauma Training - Number of staff accessing this training has been very low, this is currently being addressed with the INT leads.

Deflections Expenditure

Key Highlight

All staff in post service mobilised and fully operational 

Deflections Expenditure

Risks Milestones

Risks Milestones

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Deflections - All deflections for this project 

transitioned with the crisis repsonse nursing team 

to the night service back in Novemebr 2018 

following a change request being completed and 

approved by senior manager. 

Expenditure

Nothing of note

Risks

Nothing of note

Milestones - The service is now fully operational with all staff in post.

Key Highlight

- Operational group met and updates shared on each aspect of project

Deflections

CHES - activity

Dec 18- 99 referrals

Jan 19 -82 referrals

Expenditure

- Risks around expenditure exist for Millfield, due to void costs

Key Highlight: 

-  Cherish are adding GP information to the referral form in order to link into appropriate clusters. Cherish will share the new 

referral form with stakeholders shortly. 

- Cherish have completed visits to all the DN huddles, and will be revisiting with teams towards the end of April. Cherish to also 

revisit social care managers at the OLG, and to share case studies to show best practice. 
Deflections

- Deflection/activity data not submitted by PAHT 

for Feb at current time, however further NEL 

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Key Highlight -  Bereavement Service - Springhill Hopsice now only 10 clients on the waiting list and the waiting time fro services 

has gone down to 4 weeks, they are now in a strong position to be able to immediately respond to urgent requests for support ie 

for clients with suicidal ideation etc.

IF referrals for Millfield are low, THEN void costs will be paid

IF EMI beds at Millfield are awarded at an increased rate THEN RBC is 
open to challenge 
IF no current gap for EMI beds in market exists or is required THEN we 
may be putting other EMI bed providers at risk

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

IF initial cost model [17 EMI,7] is agreed THEN there is an issue re 
sustainability of funding after the pilot period, and once transformation 
money is not available

Expenditure

- The service is exploring a presence in A&E, to assess individuals who could go 

home (but may be admitted as it is not deemed safe for them to be at home Risks

- 18/19 budget is forecasted to overspend due to 

increased activity in sits, however a potential 

mitigation is to manage this by using underspent 

funds within the neighbourhood theme e.g., temp 

home care packages

-Delays with DBS have continued to contribute to 

issues with recruitment e.g., long delays from 

recruitment to start date, or due to delays, 

individual appointed being recruited elsewhere. 

These issues are being fed back to DBS. 

Milestones

- Service fully mobilised, now exploring potential A&E pathway

- EoL recruitment - 2 outstanding posts have start dates. Issue raised re DBS. 

- All stakeholder visits have been completed.

- Care Home pilot has been extended

Risks Milestones

Key Highlight

- Risk exists to the achievement of care package reductions. Previously BAU savings have been classed as transformation savings 

which has led to an overstatement of savings. This is being reviewed in conjunction with finance. YTD savings have been submitted 

by finance as £222,188 

- Community Catalyst job out for recruitment, and scoping work is to commence

- Review of home care model to commence, due to issues re community asset aspect of contract

Deflections Expenditure

Key Risks 

Key Risks 

Risks Milestones

High Level Statement for Leadership and Board on this scheme

Risks Milestones

Page 34



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board

Date of Meeting : 26th March 2019
Portfolio : Integrated Commissioning Lead Member : Cllr Rowbotham
Report Author : Rob Kilvington Lead Officer : Sam Evans
Public/Private Document : Public

Finance Update on the GM funded Transformation Fund 
Programme – to the end of February 2019

Executive Summary

1.1

    

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on expenditure incurred 
through to the end of February 19 on the GM funded Transformation 
Programme.

Recommendation

2.
1

ICB are asked to note the year to date expenditure incurred on the GM 
funded Transformation Programme.   

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 To facilitate the implementation of the Transformation Fund Programme 
noting that month and year to date expenditure reporting is a key indicator for 
mobilisation of interventions and thus the achievement of strategic outcomes 
of the Locality Transformation Plan. 

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

HMR CCG and the LA applied for Transformation Funding from GM H&SCP 
in 17/18, ultimately being successful in a bid for £25.17m of funding, £4.64m 
of which was used in 17/18.

The report updates ICB on the expenditure incurred to date on the 
Transformation Fund Programme. 

Alternatives Considered

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



4.3 Transformation Fund funding from GM H&SCP gives the Rochdale locality 
the up front, “pump priming” funding that is required to fund the 
transformational activity which underpins the transfer of activity from the 
acute to the community sector. Without this funding the ability to provide 
“pump priming” funding in this way would have not been possible.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

HMR CCG and the LA submitted their 3 year financial forecasts for 18/19 to 20/21 for 
the GM Roll Up on 15th June 18. 

The Transformation Fund element of this has subsequently been updated as a result 
of a review that has been undertaken on the whole TF Programme. The results of 
this review were approved by ICB at its meeting on 29th January 19. The table below 
compares the impact of the TF Programme as reflected in the GM Roll Up and the 
position approved by ICB at its meeting on 29th Jan 19. 

18/19 19/20 20/21 Total 18/19 19/20 20/21 Total
Expenditure
Intervention / Scheme Expenditure 16.2 14.6 13.2 44.0 11.4 14.3 12.7 38.4
Enablers Expenditure 3.2 1.6 0.5 5.3 2.1 2.2 1.1 5.5
Total Expenditure 19.4 16.2 13.7 49.3 13.6 16.5 13.8 43.9

Funding Streams
GM Transformation Funding -15.0 -5.6 0.0 -20.5 -12.0 -6.9 -1.7 -20.5
GM MH Theme Funding -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.5 -0.2 -0.4 -0.4 -1.1
GM Digital Funding -0.4 0.0 0.0 -0.4 -0.6 -0.2 0.0 -0.8
Cashable Benefits - Deflections -0.1 -10.4 -13.5 -24.1 0.0 -7.3 -10.5 -17.8
CCG/LA Contributions -3.8 0.0 0.0 -3.8 -0.8 -1.8 -1.2 -3.8
Total Funding -19.4 -16.2 -13.7 -49.3 -13.6 -16.5 -13.8 -43.9

Net Position 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Note - Cashable Benefits
Total Cashable Benefits from 
Deflections -4.6 -10.4 -19.2 -34.3 -5.4 -10.2 -16.9 -32.5
Remaining Cashable Benefits to go 
towards closing the gap -4.5 0.0 -5.7 -10.2 -5.4 -2.9 -6.4 -14.7

TF Programme incorporated in the GM 
Roll Up submission of 15th June 18All figs in £m

TF Programme approved by ICB on 29th 
Jan 19

A breakdown of the expenditure by intervention in 2018/19 is attached at Appendix 1 
of this report.

The table below confirms that expenditure in February was £1.1m, with £10.9m spent 
in total in the first 11 months to February :-

Page 36



Governance Board

Feb
Mth Actual

£m

Feb
YTD Actual

£m

FY Approved 
at ICB 29/1/19

£m

Prevention & Access 0.15 1.14 1.60

Neighbourhoods  & Primary Care 0.46 4.58 5.62

Planned Care 0.05 0.94 1.02

Urgent Care 0.10 1.32 1.61

Chi ldrens 0.11 1.21 1.37

Total Interventions / Schemes 0.88 9.18 11.21

Enablers 0.24 1.73 2.36

Total TF Programme 1.13 10.91 13.57

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 The terms and conditions of the GM Transformation Fund require expenditure 
to be made in line with approved activity and is subject to regular 
performance reviews with GM. GM hold the right to withhold funding should 
the programme not meet its desired objectives or if the funding is not used for 
its approved activity.   

Consultation

7.1 This report has been produced in consultation with members of the 
Integrated Finance Team and finance colleagues within Pennine Care and 
Pennine Acute as part of the normal month end processes.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Integrated Finance Team 
Monitoring Papers - Dec 18 

No 1 Riverside

For Further Information Contact: Rob Kilvington, 01706 925444
rob.kilvington@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 37



Appendix 1 – GM TF Programme - Expenditure by Intervention – 2018/19 as at 
February 19 (Month 11)

Feb Feb Feb Feb Feb Feb
Jan RFC Actual Variance Jan RFC Actual Variance Jan RFC

Int Theme Int No Int Name Month Month Month YTD YTD YTD Annual
Access 2.0 Directory of Services 2,319 2,276 (43) 22,148 22,101 (47) 26,967
Access 2.6 Housing Triage 9,002 14,318 5,316 97,149 98,568 1,420 113,047
Access 2.1 EASY Hubs 21,012 19,777 (1,235) 224,173 219,239 (4,934) 294,792

Access Total 32,332 36,371 4,039 343,470 339,909 (3,562) 434,806
Children's 7.1 One System Approach 86,249 81,403 (4,846) 940,244 933,718 (6,526) 1,066,656
Children's 7.5 Paediatrics Nurse Practice 30,294 31,756 1,462 269,664 273,769 4,105 303,742

Children's Total 116,543 113,159 (3,384) 1,209,908 1,207,487 (2,421) 1,370,398
Neighbourhoods 4.1a Integrated Neighbourhood Teams 141,868 53,414 (88,455) 1,533,787 1,194,012 (339,775) 1,662,730
Neighbourhoods 4.2 Intermediate Tier Service 39,310 34,789 (4,521) 438,327 432,193 (6,134) 477,636
Neighbourhoods 4.3 i MH Plan - Primary in MH INT 5,852 5,903 51 69,444 69,696 253 75,094
Neighbourhoods 4.3 ii MH Plan - Urgent Care Offer 32,522 32,522 (0) 148,959 148,861 (98) 196,286
Neighbourhoods 4.3 iii MH Plan - Out of Hospital Offer 63,981 64,418 437 343,838 344,563 725 423,677
Neighbourhoods 4.3 iiii MH Plan - CSDC 10,115 9,849 (266) 55,891 59,593 3,701 66,006
Neighbourhoods 4.5 Domiciliary Care INT 59,279 59,279 0 363,937 366,229 2,292 378,715
Neighbourhoods 4.6 Care Homes in INT 88,360 84,537 (3,823) 786,513 762,405 (24,109) 874,393
Neighbourhoods 4.7 Palliative Care & End of Life 15,823 10,074 (5,750) 122,313 114,800 (7,514) 142,895
Neighbourhoods 4.9 Complex Dependencies Mini Hub 16,868 16,776 (92) 164,290 161,381 (2,909) 186,541
Neighbourhoods 4.10 Substance Misuse 10,932 6,959 (3,973) 66,541 62,590 (3,951) 83,417
Neighbourhoods 4.12 Care Home - High Cost Placements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Neighbourhoods 4.13 Enhanced Carers Offer 4,166 4,167 1 45,836 45,837 1 96,000
Neighbourhoods 4.15 Night Service 23,191 17,529 (5,662) 96,613 72,624 (23,988) 121,303
Neighbourhoods 4.99 NBH Place new Requests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Neighbourhoods Total 512,267 400,214 (112,053) 4,236,290 3,834,785 (401,505) 4,784,695
Planned Care 5.1 Cancer Pathways 11,478 15,336 3,858 71,376 77,889 6,513 79,620
Planned Care 5.1A Cancer CT Scans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Planned Care 5.2a IECP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Planned Care 5.2b IECP2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Planned Care 5.3 Long Term Acute 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Planned Care 5.4 Pain Services 66,237 38,213 (28,024) 888,737 860,713 (28,024) 938,960

Planned Care Total 77,715 53,549 (24,166) 960,113 938,602 (21,511) 1,018,581
Prevention 1.2 Community Outreach 75,551 77,020 1,470 424,511 430,096 5,584 745,679
Prevention 1.3 Elderly Oral Health 9,198 9,491 293 96,967 97,275 308 107,866
Prevention 1.4 Self Care 3,681 3,904 223 53,789 56,535 2,746 75,886
Prevention 1.5 Reducing Diabetes (0) 0 0 (0) 0 0 (0)
Prevention 7.2 i Smoking in Pregnancy 6,800 10,194 3,394 64,250 71,849 7,599 70,947
Prevention 7.2 ii Children's Oral Health 17,092 16,983 (109) 145,013 145,038 25 162,105
Prevention 7.2 iii Accidents in the Home 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prevention Total 112,321 117,592 5,271 784,529 800,792 16,263 1,162,482
Primary Care 3.1 Clinical Pharmacists 14,526 6,285 (8,241) 127,592 113,717 (13,875) 148,858
Primary Care 3.4 Focussed Care Workers 30,000 30,000 0 336,176 330,000 (6,176) 366,176
Primary Care 3.5 Primary care Academy 13,583 13,583 0 206,417 206,417 0 220,000
Primary Care 3.8 CORE + Commissioning 8,333 8,333 0 91,664 91,667 3 99,997
Primary Care 3.9 Primary Care - Social Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Primary Care Total 66,442 58,201 (8,241) 761,848 741,801 (20,048) 835,031
Urgent Care 6.1 HEATT Car 57,760 27,533 (30,227) 502,785 410,915 (91,869) 560,545
Urgent Care 6.3 Discharge to Assess Initiative 63,337 52,241 (11,096) 666,118 639,545 (26,573) 754,408
Urgent Care 6.4 Integrated Virtual Clinical Hub 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Urgent Care 6.5 A&E Front Door Streaming 24,302 24,199 (103) 267,756 266,186 (1,570) 292,062

Urgent Care Total 145,399 103,973 (41,426) 1,436,659 1,316,647 (120,012) 1,607,014
Grand Total Interventions 1,063,019 883,059 (179,960) 9,732,818 9,180,022 (552,797) 11,213,007

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Feb Feb Feb Feb Feb Feb
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Jan RFC

Int Theme Int No Int Name Month Month Month YTD YTD YTD Annual
Estates 3.11 Estates Investment 13,660 13,276 (384) 80,240 62,885 (17,355) 96,241
IM&T 3.12 IM&T Investment (135,843) 30,337 166,180 397,100 553,485 156,385 700,322
LCO 3.14 LCO 36,709 35,613 (1,096) 377,623 300,860 (76,763) 460,422
OD 7.3 Organisational Development 59,784 8,472 (51,312) 158,648 107,575 (51,073) 168,137
PMO 3.13 PMO 160,396 152,744 (7,652) 652,738 636,752 (15,986) 718,770
ICD 1.6 ICD 5,504 0 (5,504) 54,356 48,852 (5,504) 165,859
Comms 3.15 Comms and Engagement 25,111 1,074 (24,037) 42,950 18,067 (24,883) 50,846

Grand Total Enablers 165,320 241,515 76,195 1,763,654 1,728,476 (35,178) 2,360,597

Grand Total All 1,228,339 1,124,574 (103,765) 11,496,473 10,908,498 (587,975) 13,573,603

Page 38



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

   
Date of Meeting: 26

th
 March 2019 

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing  
Report Author: Sandra Croasdale  
Public/Private Document: Public  

 

 

  
  

 

 ICB Performance Report  
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.  

 Illustrated in Appendix A and B are the ICB Constitution Performance 
Scorecards, reporting progress against the NHS constitution and Adult Social 
Care indicators   
 
Within Appendix A are; 
NHS Constitution and Adult Social Care indicators with granular detail facts 
as to what effect this has had on Rochdale residents, using 2017/18 data as 
a 12 month summary.  The report also contains predictive modelling, giving 
estimates as to year end summary position to those indicators listed within 
the report using historic data trends and input from commissioning leads. 
 
Reported for this period for NHS Constitution are; 

1. Accident and Emergency (A&E)  
2. Referral to Treatment (RTT)  
3. Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP)  
4. Cancer two week wait and Breast two week wait  
5. Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Recovery  

 
Within Appendix B; 
Reported for this period for Adult Social Care are; 

1. Cash Budgets 
2. Reabled or remain at home 
3. Learning Disabilities 
4. Delayed transfer of care 
5. Long Term Support 
6. Carers receiving a carer specific service 

 
 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 11



Recommendation 

 
2. ICB are requested to note the content of this report and feedback on the new 
report format and contents 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Regular update to ICB 

 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 

Key points for consideration are provided in the detailed performance 
dashboard appended to this document 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Not applicable 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. Not applicable 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Commissioning Leads 

Business Intelligence 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.  Number One Riverside, 3rd Floor, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale  
Strategic Commissioning Programme 
Director  
M: 07747 473888  
E: scroasdale@nhs.net  

 

Page 40



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

87.1%

86.7%

17,692 16,992

85.8%

Predicted performance - Referral to Treatment

87.7%88.1%89.0%88.9%88.5%83.6% 9/10

Timeline rolling 12 months

Referral to Treatment 

(RTT)-How many Rochdale 

patients are treated within 

18 weeks following  

referral from a GP? 

86.8%87.2%87.9% 87.3%

Our local RTT performance mirrors trend nationally. Based on  Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust  (PAHT) delivery against the recovery trajectories in the last 12 months confidence that recovery will be met is low.  Within regards to 52 week breaches this target has not be met, which mirrors the Greater Manchester position. However 

providers have been forthcoming about the likely increase in breaches, whilst they work towards RTT recovery. Both PAHT and MFT are proactively validating their patient access systems to ensure that no patients have been left untreated. This had led to identified breaches at MFT.

Year End Projected Position - 87.8%

Background and current performance 

Commentary

Incompletes & Waiting Lists: At the end of December 2018, 87.1% of Rochdale patients waiting to start treatment 

were waiting up to 18 weeks, thus not meeting the 92% national standard.  However, Rochdale was 0.5% above 

the national waiting time.  

The number of RTT patients waiting to start treatment has seen a 5.59% reduction from the November 2018 

position, where the number waiting to start treatment was at its highest since RTT collections began.

The number of RTT patients waiting to start treatment at the end of December 2018 was 16992.  Of those, 2186 

were waiting over 18 weeks for treatment and 10 patients were waiting over 52 weeks.

The total number of patients waiting for treatment at the end of December is 312 over from the March 2018 target 

of 16680. HMR are mandated to achieve this in March 2019.  Provisional data for January 2019 suggests that the 

16680 target has been met in January.

52 week breaches:  The 10 patients waiting over 52 weeks were under the care of Pennine Acute.  All previously 

reported patients under the care of Manchester Foundation Trust have now been treated.  Latest data (W/C 

24/02/19) suggest there are now 8 patients waiting over 52 weeks for treatment at Pennine Acute.  There have 

been 60 breaches (not individual patients) across the financial year.

87.4%

86.6% 86.6%

17,965 17,999

8 6

Action:

87.2%88.4%

03 7 7

17,990

52 week breaches

• Commissioners are working with our main provider Pennine Acute in order to validate patient waiting list data through the Elective Care Tactical Meeting and performance packs, including patients waiting over 18 weeks.

• The Trust provides updates to all North East Sector CCGs at a monthly elective care meeting. Commissioners are working with PAHT contract colleagues to agree a process that enables Commissioners to gather more bespoke information about its patients, including their ‘To Come In’ date and evidence that the patients have not had avoidable harm in 

waiting for their treatment.

• Continued validation of waiting lists to reduce duplicates, e.g. 300 duplicate digestive disorder cases have been identified and closed

• Review of waiting lists being undertaken to identify procedures of limited clinical value which could be repatriated back to primary care 

• Demand management.  At a primary care level the CCG is engaging with GPs to explain the pressures and review referral pathways.  Also underway is the re-introduction of further Primary Care clinical triage, commencing with digestive disorders.

• Consultant Connect went live in November 2018, which allows GPs to receive advice and guidance direct from a consultant. Early data indicates this is helping to deflect some referrals and has prevented small numbers of admissions to hospital.

3 10

Incompletes & Waiting Lists:

• The CCG has seen improvement in both non-admitted performance and a reduction in the number of open pathways. However the CCG does not expect to return to 92% during 18/19 and recognises that further work with the provider is necessary to improve performance in 19/20. This is particularly true in areas such as Trauma and Orthopaedics, 

where capacity is reduced during the winter months.

• A full review of Integrated Elective Care Pathways is expected to be concluded in April 2019. 

• Conducting a full system review of our planned care services in partnership with providers to inform future commissioning intentions to ensure that patients receive timely and quality services, and that we manage system pressures and performance

• Commissioners have commissioned new pathways for Gastroenterology, Ear/Nose/Throat, Gynaecology, Urology and Orthopaedics in order to try and better integrate NHS and Independent Sector capacity in Rochdale. IECP aims to get more patients into community-based alternatives to hospital-based care, reduce avoidable surgical and medical 

treatments, and prevent duplication of appointments and diagnostic tests. 

4

88.3%

5 10

85.7%

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard-Constitution Exception Report

52 week breaches

16,99217,56016,96216,93416,447<1668016,680

10

Waiting List- Rochdale's 

current patients waiting to 

be treated

2/10

3/10

2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19Indicator GM Peers

1 best 10 worst

Pennine Acute 

Performance

92.0%90.3% 86.9%87.0%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

On Pathway Waiting List

Performance Target

14/03/2019
1/4

P
age 41



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

84.0% 81.5%

81.0%

89.8% 91.6% 92.1% 89.5% 90.1% 88.6% 88.1% 85.8% 89.6%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

77.8% 100.0% 75.0%

Regular contract and performance meetings take place with the provider, along with regular operational meetings to review the impact of the service improvement plan put in place

In December 18, performance for Rochdale clients referred for suspect psychosis included:

• 75% of clients started treatment within 2 weeks in December 18 versus the 53% target.

• 2 week wait assessments for suspected psychosis have remained above the 53% target throughout the year, with 

only 2/9 months missing target.  Pennine Care have made significant improvements within the service following 

additional investment in 2017/18.

• The number of incomplete pathways (clients waiting to be assessed) at the end of December 18 was 10.  The 

total number waiting is a 71% reduction on the same period last year.

Commentary

Background and current performance 

Timeline rolling 12 months

Predicted performance - A&E

A significant amount of money was awarded to PCFT as part of this funding a programme of work was initiated across the footprint. PCFT have reported that they are achieving target, as with IAPT this cannot be reflected within the dataset reported until the national data is published. PCFT are working closer the access team,  along with 

additional recruitment into the team to boost the assessment function. In addition the  commissioner holds regular performance and contracting meeting with the provider, which also has clinical lead involvement.  

Year End Projected Position - 69.9%  (please note the number associated are very small and therefore the percentage result can vary significantly)

Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust (PAHT) report trust level A&E performance data to the CCG on a daily basis.  Year to 

date, as of the 19th February 2019, PAHT are achieving 82.8% of patients seen within 4 hours, a reduction of 1.1% 

on the 9th January 2019 position. 

Nationally, 84.4% of patients were seen within 4 hours in A&E’s in January – the lowest since A&E data collections 

began.  Only 4 out of 134 Trusts with a Type 1 department achieved the 95% standard, which was last met 

nationally in July 2015.

Performance by  PAHT site Year to Date (YTD) as of 19th February 2019 versus 19th February 2018 is reported as:

• Fairfield General Hospital 89.6%, increased by 1.4%

• North Manchester General Hospital 77.4%, increased by 1.9%

• Royal Oldham 76.5%, decreased by 2.8%

• Rochdale Infirmary Urgent Care Centre 97.2%, increased by 0.6%

Between April-December 2018, there was a 2.1% increase in Rochdale patients attending PAHT A&E’s compared to 

the same period last year

The number of under 18’s attending A&E has reduced by 1.7% compared to the same period last year

However, increases in the 18-40 (+3.8%), 41-64(+5.2%) and over 65’s(+0.5%) age bands have been noted

Rochdale Infirmary reported an exceptional increase in attendances on 4th February 2019, linked to increased 

acuity of cases which contributed to the reduced performance in February and YTD.  The CCG receives exception 

reports for any reduced performance at Rochdale Infirmary.

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

Background and current performance 

As part of the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019, NHS England are to propose new emergency and urgent care standards arising from the Clinical Standards Review, and will 'test and implement them' by October 2019.  This may include a revision of the national 95% standard to focus upon condition specific performance measures.  

• The development of the Urgent Care Plan via the Urgent Care Locality Board continues, with a strategic review of the Urgent Care system, including Out of Hours and Urgent Primary Care planned to take place throughout Quarter 4 in response to recommendations highlighted as part of the Mersey Internal Audit review.

• As previously highlighted, ambitions to shift A&E attendances (where appropriate) to the Urgent Care Centre (rather than other PAHT sites) continues.  As reported at the recent HMR Urgent Care Board, a noted shift in patients and ambulances attending the UCC since December has been evident.

• Further actions aimed at maximising HMR activity and reducing pressures on the Urgent Care system include:

• Since February 2019, increased resilience and capacity at the Urgent Care Centre in the evening in the form of an additional locum doctor and nurse which has increased the number of patients seen at the Rochdale Infirmary.

• The second HEATT car was mobilised in January

• Increased Paediatric contacts with community Paediatric Nurse Practitioner Clinic and expansion of hours to cover weekend clinics which mobilised in February for a 6 week trial period.

• Roll out of the GM Integrated Urgent Care 90 day pilot w/c 4th March via the out-of-hour’s alliance which aims to manage lower acuity (category 3 & 4) 111/999 calls within community and primary care.

1 best 10 worst

Year End Projected Position - 88.2%.

2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

*9/1088.3%

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

84.4%

85.4%84.2%86.7%83.9%88.9%

86.7%84.0%

84.0%

Predicted performance - Early Intervention Psychosis (EIP)

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

88.9%85.8%90%

*1/10

Action:

84.2%83.60%A&E- How many Rochdale 

patients are seen within 4 

hours of attending all A&E 

departments?

88.3%85.8%95%82.30%Pennine Acute 

Performance

Local performance data, which is a true reflection of 

all Rochdale patients A&E activity

Indicator

P
en

d
in

g

50.0%

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

Early Intervention 

Psychosis (EIP)- How many 

Rochdale patients with 

psychosis are treated 

within two weeks of 

referral?

15.7% 53% 38.46% 66.2%

A
w

aitin
g co

n
firm

atio
n

71.43% 66.7% 75.0% 75.0%

Target 2018/19

1 best 10 worst

GM Peers

Action:

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

7,500

8,000

8,500

9,000

9,500

10,000

Attendances Performance Target

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

0

5

10

15

Seen Referred Performance Target

14/03/2019
2/4

P
age 42



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

40.7% 44.8%

2018/19

Predicted performance -Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
Confidence levels in Thinking Ahead target achievement has improved based on the following actions that they have undertaken which include;  The service is now fully staffed,  Staff have undertaken addition training that focusing on data quality and an understanding of Performance measures, patients are now routinely contacted and 

offered alternate interventions whilst on the waiting list, the commissioner and provider hold regular meetings to discuss operational, contracting and wider referral education gaps within GP practices. 

51.7%

GM Peers

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

48.6%

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary2017/18 

Results

Target

Year End Projected Position - 49.7% 

Improving Access to 

Psychological Therapies  

(IAPT)-How many 

Rochdale patients with 

depression and/or anxiety 

disorders are recovering?

47.8% In November 18, performance for Rochdale clients engaging with talking therapies included:

• 840 referrals to talking therapies.  An increase of 27.3% on the same period last year and a 14.3% increase since 

October.  Of these, 645 were self-referrals.

• 88.9% clients started treatment within 6 weeks versus the 75% target

• 52.8% referrals moved to recovery versus the 50% target

• 22.6% of the estimated people with depression and anxiety were treated in November, versus a 19% national 

target.  The CCG remains on track to achieve the roll out target at year end.

• Provisional data from Thinking Ahead, HMR’s main IAPT provider, for December and January suggests the 

continued achievement of all performance areas excluding the percentage of clients accessing treatment within 18 

weeks in January, with estimates of 94.5% versus the 95% target.

• The following are average waiting times to access different services, as of 13th February 2019:

Action:

• Although the data is provisional, the CCG are assured they will achieve all IAPT targets at year end.  Improvements from Thinking Ahead have been reported in regards to being fully staffed which the provider report will aid in clients being seen for a 2nd appointment.  However, this is not representative within the data and communication issues 

between the service and GP referrers require improvement.

• The CCG is to commence contract negotiations with Thinking Ahead in March 2019 and is reviewing and planning to implement local performance indicators specifically focusing upon those clients in need of a second appointment in order to reduce wait times for a second treatment session.

• Thinking Ahead are working more closely with 3rd sector services to enable /promote step 1 & 2 activities within communities, alongside the current work being undertaken within neighbourhood teams and at LCO level within the One Rochdale MH theme. Thinking Ahead are working to improve communications within primary care and have a 

developed a GP pack that has been shared recently at Locality Engagement Group across HMR's GP practices.  The pack provides referral details, online services, support mechanisms, group therapy session details and contacts.

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

51.4% 50% 45.0% 51.3% 52.8%

P
en

d
in

g

48.3%

U
n

availab
le at p

rese
n

t

Indicator

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

0

50

100

150

200

250

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Recovered Completed Treatment

Performance Target

14/03/2019
3/4

P
age 43



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

74.8% 71.1% 73.3% 79.9% 73.0%

79.4% 89.6%

What does this mean for Rochdale patients?

73.1% 93% 50.8% 74.1%72.5%

U
n

availab
le at p

rese
n

t

89.9% 93% 73.1% 79.0% 76.7%Cancer two week wait-

How many Rochdale 

patients referred on the 

urgent two week 

suspected cancer pathway 

are seen within the 2 week 

time frame?

94.7%

2 Week Wait & 62 day targets 

• The Northern Care Alliance (Pennine Acute & Salford) Recovery Plan continues to be monitored via the Cancer Improvement Committee.  The HMR Cancer Commissioner has sent a request to the NES Lead Commissioner and chair of the Cancer Improvement Committee (from Oldham CCG) to see if a Cancer Commissioner can be part of the membership 

as they are more in touch with the detail involved in achieving the work plan outcomes.  

• This is being actively chased and it has been escalated to the HMR CCG GP Lead.  Work plan updates gathered from the NES Cancer Improvement Committee (NESCIC) and the NES Elective Care & Tactical Group are shown below.

Lower GI

• There has been an increase in performance within Lower GI against the 62 day target in December.  This has been partly due to a decrease in the number of 2ww referrals and the introduction of additional cancer trackers to move patients through their pathway more speedily.

• However, issues within Lower GI are continuing to cause a risk in terms of Cancer Waiting Times Performance.  Currently there is a reduction of 5 Consultants which has been escalated to the Northern Care Alliance (NCA) and a Group solution is being sought.  The Chief Delivery Officer from the NCA is raising this issue at GM level. Some non-cancer 

outpatient appointments have been outsourced to release capacity for cancer patients as a temporary solution.  

• The recent Quality Assurance Review Panel had highlighted that there was inadequate capacity including clinical leadership. The problems within the Leadership Team for Colorectal need to be addressed.  Funding for 2 x PAs has been successfully sourced via the recent GM ‘Case of Need’ for both the Lower GI and Upper Gastrointestinal MDT Leads. 

Unfortunately workforce challenges are delaying the implementation of this due to the requirement for the leads to continue with a high level of clinical provision to help mitigate the on-going capacity challenges.

• It was highlighted at the last NESCIC that there will be a continuing increase in suspected cancer referrals as the NICE guidance broadens (in order to allow for increased detections at earlier staging) and consequently effective capacity planning is required. An improvement plan for unnecessary follow up appointments which patients are asked to attend 

(for both cancer and routine pathways) is in the process of being established across NES.  

Upper GI

• There is continued reduced availability of both Medical and Clinical Oncologists at the Upper GI MDT Meetings. This issue has worsened since Upper GI moved to a Sector model in September 2018.  A more robust escalation procedure is in the process of being agreed with The Christie.  The current process is causing pressures in achieving the 62 day 

target.

Breast 2 Week Wait

• It has previously been identified that 218 breast referrals had not been added to the NCA cancer database which will potentially impact on 2ww performance (patients have all been registered on PAS but Booking and Scheduling did not register these patients onto the database and therefore were not visible to Cancer Services/Directorates).  

• A full investigation and validation is still being undertaken by the NCA.  It must be noted that all patients were offered an appointment within the 14 day timeframe.  The breast team is now fully established and the backlog of patients has been cleared.  This should result in PAHT meeting the target from January 2019.

• However, there has been an issue in trying to understand why 11 HMR patients have breached the 2ww target since April 2018 at Bolton NHS Foundation Trust.  After some investigation it has been highlighted that one particular HMR GP has been referring directly to Bolton via Choose and Book.  It is preferable that this referral pathway should not be 

used within HMR and instead referral should be sent via the referral management booking centre (RMBC).  In the interim, HMR CCG has requested further information from Bolton FT on which HMR GP referring along with a plan of action on how they intend the stop HMR patients breaching until this issue is resolved.  A further update will be provided to 

ICB in May.

• Vast improvement noted in 2 week wait performance for Rochdale patients, with 92.9% of patients seen within 

the 2 week timeframe, versus the 75.06% reported in November.

• December performance for 2 week waits was the highest in 2018/19, although 0.1% under the 93% standard

• This increase in achievement has been attributed to the Lower Gastrointestinal speciality achieving the 93% 

standard for the first time in 2018/19, with 94.1% of patients seen within the 2 week timeframe.  However, there 

were a lower number of referrals received into the speciality in December.

• 8 of 11 (73%) cancer specialities (which were referred into) achieved the 93% standard at Pennine Acute, an 

increase from the 5/10 (50%) (which were referred into) achieved in November. 

• Failed specialities for Rochdale patients at Pennine Acute in December included Breast Cancer (87.6%), 

Gynaecological Cancer (90%), and Upper Gastrointestinal (87.6%) 

2 Week Wait – Breast 

• Noted decrease in performance for 2 week wait for breast symptomatic, with 72.9% of Rochdale patients seen 

within the 2 week timeframe in December, a 7.9% decrease on the November position.

• Pennine Acute reported 14 breaches of the standard in December (an increase of 6 from November), with Bolton 

Foundation Trust reporting 2 – the same as November.  Both Pennine Acute and Bolton underperformance is 

contributing towards the CCG’s reduced performance for suspected breast cancer.  

62 Day Standard

• Noted 5.95% increase in performance in December from the November position, with 80.95% of Rochdale 

patients having their first treatment for cancer within the 62 day timeframe, although still underperforming 

against the 85% target.

• 91.3% of Rochdale patients receiving treatment at Pennine Acute were seen within the 62 day standard

• Only 40% of Rochdale patients receiving treatment in December at The Christie received first treatment within 

the 62 day standard, with noted underperformance in Gynaecology, Upper GI and Urology.  However, delays in 

receipt of CARP (Communication and Referral Proforma’s) from Pennine Acute are an attributing factor to this 

underperformance 

• Underperformance in 1st treatment at the Christie has been a consistent issue throughout 2018/19, and can be 

linked to complex patient pathways (patients referred for differing tumour groups) and delays in receipt of CARP 

(Communication and Referral Proforma’s) linked to staffing issues at Pennine Acute (who receive the initial referral 

form).  These issues are included for review within the Northern Care Alliance Cancer Recovery plan.

 Breast symptomatic - 

How many Rochdale 

patients referred on the 

urgent two week breast 

symptomatic pathway are 

seen within the 2 week 

timeframe?

Action:

80.8%88.2% 54.3%

75.1% 92.9%

72.9%

1 best 10 worst

GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

Predicted performance - Cancer two week wait

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19
Background and current performance 

2 Week Wait

Year End Projected Position: Two Week Wait - 78.1%, Two Week Wait Breast Symptomatic - 73.3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

400

500

600

700

800

900

Seen Referred Performance Target

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Seen Referred

Performance Target

14/03/2019
4/4

P
age 44



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

40.4% 39.1% 39.2% 39.9%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

73.8% 74.2% 84.0% 82.0% 78.5% 72.5% 75.8% 76.8%

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

6.81% 6.81% 6.81% 6.36%

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Learning Disabilities- The 

percentage of Rochdale Adult 

Social Care service users with a 

learning disability who are in paid 

employment

6.5% 7% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.60%6.50% 6.80%

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

6.36% 4th best in GM at 

Q3 end

At the end of 17/18, the north west average was 6.3% and the GM average was 5.3%. We have set a challenging 

target which we will aim to achieve by year end and our performance is strong against GM peers

Actions:

We have ongoing work with providers to support people into paid employment and also improvements in the 

data on our systems to ensure all employment statuses are recorded.

We have remained just under target throughout the year with small percentage increases from quarter to quarter, 

the next full analysis will be at Q4 end.

Reabled or remain at home-

Percentage of Rochdale service 

users who are reabled or remain at 

home with a care package 

subsequent to a period of 

reablement 

77% 77% 79.8% 80.8% 77.9% 3rd best in GM 

2018/19 at Q3 end

The service defines reabled where the service users either has no ongoing  care needs or requires less support via 

a care package than when they entered into the stars service. There were over 1,300 service users who accessed 

the STARs service in 2017/18- 89% of these were over 65 years old. 15% of stars discharges went back into 

hospital. For the first 4 months of 2018, 90% of people who were discharged from hospital into stars were still at 

home 91 days after their discharge which is a good measure of reablement success and a good national 

performance.

Actions
The reablement service performance has continued to improve over the last few years. The months where 

performance has dropped under target were mainly due to a higher number of service users returning to hospital 

which was approximately 50% higher than in the previous quarter. YTD we are still exceeding target with 78.1% 

reabled against a target of 77%, this has improved going into January.

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

39.4% 1st best in GM 

2018/19 at Q3 end

39.8% 39.9%

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Integrated Commissioning Board Performance Dashboard Exception Report- Adult Social Care

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months

The north west average for this indicator at year end was 23% and GM average was 24%. The performance has 

seen a steady increase over the past 3 years and the trend is continuing. The service users included in this 

indicator are those who have a package of care and take this as a cash budget instead of a managed budget. 

Service users who take their personal budget as a cash payment have more choice and control over how they are 

supported through their allocated budget and it gives more flexibility to the service user.

Actions

37.2%

This measure performance will increase through the year and is expected to be exceeded by year end. We are 

currently sitting just below target at 39.2% in December however October saw us achieve target, the slight 

decrease is due to an increase in the number of service users as a whole rather than a reduction in the actual 

number of cash budgets themselves, we remain on track to achieve by year end and are 1st in our GM Peer 

Group. 

Q2 to Q3 saw a 0.5% increase in SUs (eligible for cash budget if taken) with an increase of 1.2% of cash budgets 

taken which supports our achieving the target, this positive trend continues through January.

Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

Cash Budgets-The percentage of 

Adult social Care service users with 

self directed support who take this 

as a cash budget

35% 40% 35.3% 35.5% 37.2%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

service users with self directed support who take
this as a cash budget

Target

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

 service users who are reabled or remain at
home with a care package subsequent to a
period of reablement

Target

5%

6%

7%

service users with a learning disability who are in
paid employment

1/3 14/03/2019

P
age 45



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

310 328 384 428 396 352 TBC

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

13 23 23 27 30 11 12

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Long Term Support- How many 

Rochdale Adult social Care service 

users, aged 65 and over, have their 

support needs met by ASC funded 

permanent admission to 

residential or nursing care.

247 243 for 

the year

28 29 21 217 3rd best in GM at 

Q3 end

There is  an expectation that the  number of admissions is slightly higher in quarter one and quarter 4. Although 

the number of admissions in quarter 1 is higher than the expected target, it is still lower than the same period 2 

years ago and the proportional variance against the number of people in residential/ nursing care is lower than 

the same period last year (meaning there are less people in council funded placements against June last year)

Actions:

Every permanent placement by the local authority is scrutinised to ensure that this is the only available option. 

With the aging population, it is expected that the numbers will increase however the age of people entering into a 

permanent placement has increased meaning they are able to stay at home longer if that is their wish. The 

average length of stay for all placements for people aged over 65 is 18months for the north west, all placements 

have been scrutinised at the average age of all placements this year for older people is 83 years old.

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

2,152 3rd best in GM at 

Q3 end

Actions:

The CCG has requested more in-depth narrative from Pennine Care around each delayed patient under their care 

via the Mental Health Locality Meeting in order to better understand any system flow issues.

Delayed transfer of care (days)-
How many Rochdale patients has 

their discharge delayed from a 

hospital seting(all reasons and 

causes- NHS and Social Care) 

3,154 2,613 for 

the year, 

653 YTD

406 383 341 • There were 352 total delayed days in December 2018, of which 200 (56.8%) were in acute care and 152 (43.2%) 

were non-acute.

• This was 135 days under the revised national and local target of 487 delayed days per month

• Year to Date (December 2018), Rochdale is 3/10 best across other Greater Manchester localities

• The main reason for delays in December was ‘Awaiting Residential Care Home Placement’ which accounted for 

93 days

• 161 days in December were attributed to Pennine Acute, 121 attributed to Pennine Care and 70 attributed to 

other organisations

• Since the beginning of this financial year, clear steps have been progressed to improve the speed and 

performance of our system in terms of how we work together around the transfer of care of people in Mental 

Health non acute beds to non-hospital settings. We have worked to improve coordination and agreement of 

DToC’s (including coding) and by improving step down pathways (patient discharge) similar to the Discharge 2 

Assess (D2A) pathways we have introduced for acute settings.  The target is to see a reduction in delayed transfers 

across each month.

• There are now 2 complex needs units operational in Rochdale aimed at reducing delays for those mental health 

clients with complex mental health issues.  

• Strengthened performance management.  DToC is owned by the Integrated Discharge Team and there are daily 

discharge meetings and a weekly review of 7+ day delays.

• Weekly meetings to support the immediate operational and longer term decisions to reduce DToC.

• Build on the success of Discharge 2 Assess pathways

• Second HEATT car started in January

• Some of the targeted interventions have included:

o Improved multi-agency working to address Mental Health DToC;

o Bed base review including ensuring sufficient discharge to assess, intermediate care, residential and nursing 

home beds;

o Exploring community ‘in-reach’ model to plan and support discharge; and

o Flexible deployment of resource, e.g. reablement into Home in a Day service.

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers Timeline rolling 12 months Commentary

1 best 10 worst Background and current performance 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

D
e

ce
m

b
er

Ja
n

u
ar

y

Fe
b

ru
ar

y

M
ar

ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r

O
ct

o
b

e
r

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r

D
e

ce
m

b
er

Delayed Transfers of Care (Days) Target

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

long term support needs met by permanent
admission to residential or nursing care which
is LA supported (aged 65+)

Target

2/3 14/03/2019

P
age 46



Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan YTD

1621 1728 1897 2017 2101 2292 2387

Actions:

Indicator 2017/18 

Results

Target 2018/19 GM Peers

2,292 1st best in GM 

2018/19 at Q3 end

What does this mean for Rochdale residents?

1 best 10 worst

Carers receiving a carer specific 

service- how many carers in 

Rochdale have received at least 

information and guidance from 

Adult social Care during the year

2,347 2500 978 1173 1497

Commentary

Background and current performance 

This indicator is a cumulative one which is zero based at the start of each new financial year. In addition to Adult social Care, Rochdale residents can access carer support 

through N Compass carers resource who provide many services such as advocacy, crisis planning, short break payments and information and advice. Since N Compass 

started providing addidional support, there has been performance improvement of 15% in quarter one against the same period last year. As well as information and 

advice, Adult social Care complete formal assessments of needs for carers and packages of care where applicable

This indicator is performing well again GM peers (1 in GM Peer Group) and against expected levels, it is a zero based indicator and increases throughout the year, we have 

a YTD figure of 2387 carers which equates to 1435.09 per. 100K population at the end of January.

3/3 14/03/2019

P
age 47



Document is Restricted

Page 48

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 70

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Opening Pooled Budget
	7 Better Care Fund - update report
	8 pooled budget position - Period 10
	9 Transformation highlight report
	1. NEW Transformation HLR Prevention - March 2019 FINAL.pdf
	Theme Prevention


	10 Finance Update on the GM funded Transformation Fund Programme
	11 Performance report
	Agenda item 11 - Appendix A ICB Constitution Performance Dashboard March 2019
	Agenda item 11 - Appendix B ICB Adult Social Care Performance March 2019

	14 Savings proposals update 2019/20 and 2020/21
	15 LCO Contracting Arrangements
	16 Future Provision of Children’s Community Health Services

